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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Hong Kong Infernational Construction Invesiment Management Group
Co., limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda.

The registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon House,
2 Church Streef, Hamilion HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of
business of the Company is located at 20th Floor, One Island South,
No. 2 Heung Yip Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal

activities:

e foundation piling and site invesfigation
*  property development and investment
° investment

The Group started fo involve in investment business in current year. Also,
the financial results of the property development and property investment
and management segments of the Group, which were reported as
separate segments in prior years' financial statements are reported in
aggregate under the “property development and investment” segment
during the year for the management's purpose of beffer resources
allocation and performance assessment. Comparative figures of the
segment information have been reclassified to conform with the current

year's presentation.

Other than this, there were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

The immediate holding company of the Company is HNA Finance |
Co., lid., a company incorporated in Anguilla with limited liability and
ulimately controlled by Hainan Province Cihang Foundation.
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REAIREEER(E) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
B8 2\ A1 E# Information about subsidiaries
ARBEEMBRARINFENT Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
ML/
AR ERnE EEARE/ ARARLE
Place of HREMER ZBRERDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capitol the Company Principal activifies
—E—tF “E-5F
2017 2016

RANE(ER)RRAT & L3R 1001 100 95 REnR

(IRBE(ER) ) Wit s) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 Investment
Tysan Foundation (Hong Kong) Limited holding

["TFHKL') frote 5)
RANETR(BR)ARAT B LER2ET 100 95 BRERNR

(H#1R3) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 REAARERRE
Tysan Confractors (Hong Kong) Limited Project monagement

fnotes | and 3) and provision

of consuliancy

and management

services

RARE(RFM)ERARAMZIRS) ! L@k 25,0008 100 05 HEITH
Tysan Constuction [Macau] Limited Macou Ordinary MOP25,000 Foundation
notes | and 3] pling
RRMETRERARWZ ] 2R3) 26 LER 100 95 WETER
Tysan Foundation Limited Hong Kong 141,000,000 57T HEHE
fnotes |, 2and 3) Ordinary HK$ 141,000,000 Foundation
{EIER3,000,0008 pling and site

Deferred HK$3,000,000 investigation
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1. RAREEER(E) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
B8 L e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEMBRAINFENT - () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
B g
AR EFEE ERITRE/ ARARE
Place of BREMmER ZREADL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
g-tf “ERF
2017 2016
REMELT NIRERAT BE  EBARG0,110,000E7T 100 95 WARITER
(Wit 3K7) Hong Kong  Ordinary HK$60, 110,000 HERHE
Tysan Foundation Geotechnical Limited Foundation
fnokes 1, 5and 7) pling and site
invesfigation
RABWAERRAAMNZ - 2K5) & LR 10,0008 100 95 fHiEE
Tysan Machinery Hire Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Machinery
fnotes 1, 2.and 3) IR 200,000 hiring
Deferred HK$200.000
TERBIRERAAWZ 1) BE  EBAR24,480,0007 100 100 BHEEREE
Proficiency Equipment Limited frote /) Hong Kong ~ Ordinary HK$24,480,000 Machinery
hiring ond
frading
TETREEERAAE 1) &b ERR2ET 100 100 REIRRER
Proficiency Engineering Limited fnore 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 EREE
Provision of
engineering
services and
machinery
hiring
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RNEREEER (E) 1.

BB 2 AIEH ()
ARREEMBARNFHENT : (8)

AL/

BAUEE S

Place of

incorporation/

£8 registration
Name and business
AIRERAAMZ ) &
Lion Bright Limited fnote 1/ Hong Kong
NI R
Mac Proficiency Limited frofe // Macau
RAERBRAAMNZ2) &
Tysan Management Limited frofe 2/ Hong Kong
RAREERARAA B
Tyson Invesiment Limited Hong Kong

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W B it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]

BRTRHG/ ARARL
BREMER ZRERDL
Issued share/ Percentage of equity
paidup aftributable fo IEXH
registered capifal the Company Principal activifies
ZE-tF “EAF
2017 2016
BRR2ET 100 100 BHEEREE
Ordinary HK$2 Machinery
hiring ond
frading
LR 25,0008 100 100 RETRRS
Ordinary MOP25,000 REmiEE
Provision of
engineering
senvices ond
machinery
hiring
LR 1672085047 100 100 tXER
Ordinary HK$16,720,850 Corporate
RILR2ET management
Deferred HK$2
TRk 2T 100 100 REER
Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment
holding

F3; 2017 99
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1. RAREEER(E) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
B8 L e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARBFEMBARMGENT : (&) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
L/
AR EFEE ERITRE/ ARARE
Place of BREMmER ZREADL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ZE-tF “ERF
2017 2016
Cotiontree Pocific Limited* RERUES LRER AT 100 100 RERR
British Virgin Ordinary HK$ 1 Investment
Islond 'BVI') holding
Tysan Foundation Holdings Limited* (4422 /) ARE LRR0.1 AT 100 100 RAER
fnote 1) Bermuda Ordinary HK$0.1 Investment
holding
BRARRELRRERRAA) Bk LRR2ET 100 100 RERK
(Hiito) Hong Kong Ordinary HK§2 Investment
HKICIM Group Property Development holding
& Investment Limited /noe &

EERERRARME 1) &k LRR2AET 100 100 EELHIES
Sure Faith Investment Limited fote /) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Property
holding
BREMERRLRMZ]) Bk LRR2ET 100 100 RERR
Duncan Properties Limited fnore 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK§2 Investment
holding
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REAIREEER(E) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
BB 1] EH () Information about subsidiaries (Contd
AR EMBRRINFENT - (&) Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Contd)
AL/
BAUEE S ERTRY/ ARARL
Place of BREMER ZRERDL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equily
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capifal the Company Principal activifies
2-tF “EAF
2017 2016
Beneficial Enterprises Limited* (4737 /) ARRLES LR 100%T 100 100 REZR
[noke 1) BVI Ordinary US§100 Investment
holding
BRTRRARAMNZ ) B TER2ET 100 100 REER
Fund House Limited fnore 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Invesiment
holding
BENFERE (LB) ARARY e/ 500,000%7t 100 100 S
(HE1R3) EIR, US$500,000 Property
Duncan Property Management (Shanghai PRC/ manogement
Company Limited* fnotes / and 3/ Mainland Ching
Federoted Resources Limited”* (432 1) AERAER AR 100%T 100 100 RERK
[note 1) BvI Ordinary US§100 Invesiment
holding
ENERRARMZ ) Bk LRR2ET 100 100 REmEk
Cariiway limited fnoe 1/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Investment
holding
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1. RAREEER(E) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
B8 L e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEMBRAINFENT - () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:
(Contd)
L/
AR EFEE ERITRE/ ARARE
Place of BREMmER ZREADL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
ZE-tF “ERF
2017 2016
FEREERFHELLARAR" hE/ AR 2000007 100 100 VESE
(WE1R3) REIRH, RMB200,000 Property
Shanghai Changning Duncan Propery PRC/ consulfing
Consuling Company Limited* Mainland China
fnotes | and 3)
MRREBRAR M ]) & LRR2ET 100 100 REERL RS
Great Regent Invesiments limited fnote /) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 HERE RS
Investment
holding and
provision of
sales and
markefing
services
FARNE (L8) BRAF R/ 1,000,000%7 100 100 NEER
([RRLE]) (WEIR4) REIR US$1,000,000 Properly
Tysan Land (Shanghail Limited* PRC/ development
[‘Tyson Shanghai’| frotes 7 and4) Mainland China
BRERLRHEZ]) B LRR 00T 100 100 REERL RS
Great Prosper limited frote 7/ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$100 HERE RS
Investment
holding and
provision of
sales and
markefing
services
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RNEREEER (E)

B8 2 AIE# (4E)

ARFEEMBATFENT : (%)

t#

Name

RABHERE(R2)ERART
([FAXR) Wit 1%3)

Tysan Property Development (Tianjin]
Company Limited* {Tysan Tianjin’)
fnotes | and 3)

BERRAAMNZ )
Sparkle Key limited /rote 7/

RAEBE(ER)BRAA
(=BG HZ 1 R3)

Tysan Land [Shenyang] Limited *
[‘Tysan Shenyang'| fnotes 7 and J)

EELRERLAME )
Gainful Engineering Limited frofe /)

KERBARAR ML)
Top Genivs Holdings Limited frore /)

AL/
BAUEE S
Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business

wE/
N,

PRC/

Mainland China

Hong Kong

hE/
HEN

PRC/

Minland China

BA
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]

BRTRHG/ ARARL
YriEMEx ZRERDL
Issued share/ Percentage of equity
paidup aftributable fo IEXH
registered capifal the Company Principal activifies
ZE-tF “EAF
2017 2016

5,000,000%7 100 100 VIESHES
US$5,000,000 Property
development
L3RR 10,0007 100 100 REZR
Ordinary Invesiment
HK$10,000 holding
108,300,000% T 100 100 NEER
US$108,300,000 Properly
100 100 development
a1 AT 100 100 BREE
Ordinary HK$ 1 Project
management
BRR BT 100 = VIESHES
Ordinary HK$1 Property
development
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1. RAREEER(E) 1.  CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)
B8 L e &R (4E) Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd)
ARREEMBRAINFENT - () Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd)
B g
AR EFEE ERITRE/ ARARE
Place of BREMmER ZREADL
incorporation/ Issued share/ Percentage of equity
£ registration paidup attributable to IEXHK
Name and business registered capital the Company Principal activities
g-tf “ERF
2017 2016

Onmnilink Assefs Limited™ RERUES LRER AT 100 100 RERR
BVI Ordinary HK$ 1 Investment holding
Onwards Asia limited* RERUES LRER AT 100 100 RERK
(Wit 1) o 1) BVI Ordinary HK$ Investment holding
Twinpeak Assets Limited* RERUES LRER AT 100 - RERR
(Wit 1) o 1) BVI Ordinary HK$ Investment holding
ERERBRAAMNGL ) & LRR1ET 100 - VESHES
Milway Development Limited fnofe // Hong Kong Ordinary HK$ 1 Property
development
Silverbell Asio Limited™ BEREUEE EER AT 100 _ LEBE
BV Ordinary HK§ Corporcte
financing

Benefit Developments Limited* RERUES LRR1ET 100 - s
BVI Ordinary HK$ 1 Invesiment

HKICIA (GP] I Limited™* (#5 7) FSEHS LEk £ 100 - Y
fnote 1} Cayman lslonds Ordinary US§ Invesiment
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Information about subsidiaries (Cont'd

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(Contd]
Notes:
1. Held through subsidiaries.

2. The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends (other than a fixed
non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year during which the net profit of the relevant company available for
dividends exceeds HK$1 billion), no rights to vote at general meefings,
no rights to receive any surplus on a refurn of capital on a winding-up
[other than the amount paid up on such shares, provided that the holders
of the ordinary shares of that company have been distributed in such a
winding-up of a sum of HK$1,000 billion in respect of each ordinary

share).

3. These entities are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises under
the PRC law.

4. This entity is registered as a Sinoforeign joint venture under the PRC law.

5. On 27 April 2017, the Company acquired an additional 5% equity
interests in TFHKL and ifs subsidiaries. Further defails of the acquisition are
set out in nofe 43 1o the financial stafements.

6. lts name was changed from Tysan Property Development & Investment
limited to HKICIM Group Property Development & Investment Limited
effective from 4 May 2017.

7. During the year, this entity’s issued share capital was increased from
HK$10,000,000 to HK$60,110,000.

Subsidiaries whose statutory financial statements were not audited by
Emst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst & Young
global network.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

F3R 2017
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3.1
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3.1

CHANGE OF FINANCIAL YEAR END DATE

During the last reporting period, the board of directors of the Company
resolved to change the financial year end date of the Company from
31 March to 31 December effective from 31 December 2016 in
order fo align the financial year end date of the Company with HNA
Group Co., lid., the infermediate holding company of the Company.
The consolidated financial statements presented for the last reporting
period therefore covered a ninemonth period from 1 April 2016 to 31
December 2016. The corresponding comparative amounts presented
for the consolidated statements of profit or loss, the consolidated
stafement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, the consolidated statement of cash flows and related
notes, which were prepared for the period from 1 April 2016 1o 31
December 2016, may not be comparable with amounts shown for the
current year.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASs") and Inferpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties, financial
asset af fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
insfrument which have been measured af fair value. Disposal groups
held for sale are stated at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair
values less costs 1o sell as further explained in note 3.4. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"| and all values
are rounded fo the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and ifs subsidiaries [collectively referred to as the
"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2017. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by
the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, fo variable returns from ifs involvement with the investee and has
the ability to affect those returns through ifs power over the investee |i.e.,
existing rights that give the Group the current ability fo direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Cont'd)

Basis of consolidation (Contd

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over
an investee, including:

[a)  the confractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other confractual arrangements; and

[c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial sfatements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the
Group obtains confrol, and continue to be consolidated until the date
that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
atiributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company and fo the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling inferests
having a deficit balance. All infra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating fo fransactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises [i] the assets
(including goodwill] and liabilities of the subsidiary, i) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and |jii] the cumulative translation
differences recorded in equity; and recognises [i] the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment refained and
(iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of
components previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified fo profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities.

F3R 2017
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DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for the first time
for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments fo HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for

Unrealised losses

Amendments to HKFRS 12
included in Annual Clarification of the Scope of
Improvements fo HKFRSs HKFRS 12
20142016 Cycle

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities:

None of the above amendments to HKFRSs has had a significant
financial effect on these financial statements. Disclosure has been made
in note 37 to the financial statements upon the adoption of amendments
fo HKAS 7, which require an entity to provide disclosures that enable
user of financial stafements o evaluate changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and
non-cash changes.
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that

have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS @

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Confracts'

Financial Instruments'

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers'

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenve
from Contracts with Customers'

leases?
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial statements.

(Contd)

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract®

Amendments fo HKAS 28 longterm Inferests in Associates and

Joint Ventures®

Amendments fo HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property’

HK(IFRICHnt 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'
HK(IFRICHnt 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments®
Annual Improvements Amendments fo HKFRS 1 and
20142016 Cycle HKAS 28!
Annual Improvements Amendments fo HKFRS 3, HKFRS 11,
20152017 Cycle HKAS 12 and HKAS 232

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2019
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2021

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project to
replace HKAS 39 and dll previous versions of HKFRS 9. The standard
infroduces new requirements for classification and measurement,
impairment and hedge accounting. The Group will adopt HKFRS 9 from
1 January 2018. The Group will not restate comparative information
and will recognise any transition adjustments against the opening
balance of equity at 1 January 2018. During 2017, the Group has
performed a detailed assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
9. The expected impacts relate to the classification and measurement
and the impairment requirements are summarised as follows:

(@) Classification and measurement

The Group does not expect that the adoption of HKFRS @ will
have a significant impact on the classification and measurement
of its financial assets. It expects to confinue measuring at fair
value all financial assets currently held at fair value. Equity
investments currently held as available for sale will be measured
at fair value through profit or loss as the investments are intended
fo be held for the foreseeable future and the Group expects to
apply the option fo present fair value changes in profit or loss.
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(bl

Impairment

HKFRS 9 requires an impairment on debt instruments recorded
af amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive
income, lease receivables, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts that are not accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss under HKFRS 9, to be recorded based on
an expected credit loss model either on a twelvemonth basis or
a lifetime basis. The Group will apply the simplified approach
and record lifetime expected losses that are esfimated based on
the present values of all cash shortfalls over the remaining life
of all of its trade receivables. Furthermore, the Group will apply
the general approach and record twelve-month expected credit
losses that are estimated based on the possible default events
on ifs other receivables within the next twelve months. Based on
a preliminary assessment, if the Group were to adopt the new
impairment requirement at 31 December 2017, accumulated
impairment loss at that date would not be significantly different
as compared with that recognised under HKAS 39. As a
consequence, no adjustment is expected fo be made to the
opening balances of net assets and retained profits at 1 January

2018.
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W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKFRS 15, issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS
15, revenue is recognised af an amount that reflects the consideration
fo which an entity expects fo be entifled in exchange for transferring
goods or services fo a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more sfructured approach for measuring and recognising revenue. The
standard also infroduces extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosure
requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset and liability
account balances between periods and key judgements and estimates.
The standard will supersede all current revenue recogpnition requirements
under HKFRSs. Either a full refrospective application or a modified
retrospective adoption is required on the initial application of the
standard. In June 2016, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
15 to address the implementation issues on idenfifying performance
obligations, application guidance on principal versus agent and
licences of intellectual property, and transition. The amendments are
also infended to help ensure a more consistent application when entities
adopt HKFRS 15 and decrease the cost and comp|e><Hy of applying
the standard. The Group will adopt HKFRS 15 from 1 January 2018
and plan fo adopt the transitional provisions in HKFRS 15 to recognise
the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjusiment to the opening
balance of refained earings at 1 January 2018. In addition, the
Group plans to apply the new requirements only fo contracts that are
not completed before 1 January 2018. The Group expects that the
fransitional adjustment to be made on 1 January 2018 upon initial
adoption of HKFRS 15 will not be material. During the year ended
31 December 2017, the Group has performed a preliminary defailed
assessment on the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 15.
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

The Group's principal acfivities consist of foundation piling and site

invesfigation, property and investment. The expected impacts arising

from the adoption of HKFRS 15 on the Group are summarised as

follows:

[al)

Foundation piling and site invesfigation

The Group's revenue from foundation piling and sife investigation
was recognised according to the percentage of completion
of each individual contract of construction works, which was
estimated based on actual costs incurred over the tofal budgeted
costs. The corresponding confract revenue was also estimated
by management based on contract sum and work values from
variation orders. The Group considers HKFRS 15's guidance
on contract combinations, contract modifications arising from
variation orders, variable consideration, and the assessment of
whether there is significant financing component in the confracts,
particularly faking info account the reason for the difference in
timing between the transfer of control of goods and services
fo customers and timing of related payments. The Group has
preliminarily assessed that performance obligation is satisfied over
time, therefore revenue from these construction contracts should
be recognised over time during the course of construction by the
Group. Based on the assessment undertaken so far, no significant
impact is expected by the Group on its results of operation and
financial position.
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3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

(b)

(c]

Property development

The Group's property development activities are carried out in
the PRC and Hong Kong only. Taking into account the confract
terms, the Group's business practice and the legal and regulatory
environment of the PRC and Hong Kong, the Group has
assessed that ifs property sales confracts will not meet the criferia
for recognising revenue over time and therefore revenue from
property sales will continue fo be recognised at a point in fime.
Currently the Group recognises revenue from property sales upon
handover of the property to buyer, which is taken to be the point
in time when the risks and rewards of ownership of the property
have been fransferred to the buyer. The Group has assessed that
under the transfer-of-control approach in the new sfandard revenue
from property sales will generally be recognised when the legal
assignment is completed, which is the point in time when the
buyer has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property. This may
resulf in revenue being recognised lafer than af present.

Presentation and disclosure

The presentation and disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15
are more defailed than those under the current HKAS 18.
The presentation requirements represent a significant change
from current practice and will significantly increase the volume
of disclosures required in the Group's financial statements.
Many of the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 15 are new
and the Group has assessed that the impact of some of these
disclosure requirements will be significant. In particular, the
Group expects that the notes to the financial statements will be
expanded because of the disclosure of significant judgements
made on determining the fransaction prices of those confracts
that include variable consideration, how the transaction prices
have been allocated to the performance obligations, and the
assumptions made fo estimate the stand-alone selling price
of each performance obligation. In addition, as required by
HKFRS 15, the Group will disaggregate revenue recognised
from confracts with cusfomers into categories that depict how the
nafure, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
are affected by economic factors. It will also disclose information
about the relationship between the disclosure of disaggregated
revenue and revenue information disclosed for each reportable
segment.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

3.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16, issued in May 2016, replaces HKAS 17 leases, HK(IFRICHnt
4 Defermining whether an Arrangement confains a lease, HK[SICHnt 15
Obperaling leases - Incentives and HK(SICHnt 27 Fvaluating the Substance
of Transactions Involving the legal Form of a lease. The standard sefs out
the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees fo recognise assefs and liabilities for most
leases. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees —
leases of low-value assets and shortterm leases. At the commencement
date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments
[i.e., the lease liability) and an assef representing the right fo use the
underlying asset during the lease term [i.e., the rightofuse assef). The right-
ofuse assef is subsequently measured af cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses unless the rightofuse asset meets the definition
of investment property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant
and equipment to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease
liability is subsequently increased fo reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation
expense on the rightotuse asset. Lessees will also be required to remeasure
the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events, such as change
in the lease term and change in future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used o defermine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability
as an adjustment fo the rightofuse asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS
16 is substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors
will continue fo classify all leases using the same classification principle as
in HKAS 17 and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under HKAS 17. lessees can choose fo apply the standard using
either a full refrospective or a modified refrospective approach. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of HKFRS 16 upon adoption and is considering
whether it will choose fo take advantage of the practical expedients
available and which transition approach and reliefs will be adopted. As
disclosed in note 38(b) to the financial statements, at 31 December 2017,
the Group had future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operafing leases in aggregate of approximately HK$42,564,000. Upon
adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein may need fo be
recognised as new rightof-use assefs and lease liabilities. Further analysis,
however, will be needed to determine the amount of new rights of use
assefs and lease liabilities 1o be recognised, including, but not limited to,
any amounts relafing to leases of low-value assets and short ferm leases,
other practical expedients and reliefs chosen, and new leases entered info
before the date of adoption.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associafe is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it
is in a position fo exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group's inferests in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under
the equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from fransactions between the Group and ifs associates are eliminated
fo the extent of the Group's investments in the associates, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
fransferred.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the Group
measures and recognises any refained investment af its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate upon loss of
significant influence and the fair value of the retained investment and
proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, financial asset af fair
value through profit or loss and derivative financial instrument at fair
value af the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received fo sell an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
fransaction fo sell the asset or fransfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nondinancial asset fakes info account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the assef in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Fair valve measurement [Cont'd))

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
o the fair value measurement as a whole:

level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted] in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

level 2 = based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant fo the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

level 3 - based on valuation fechniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether fransfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

When an indication of impairment exisfs, or when annual impairment
festing for an asset is required (other than investment properties,
properties under development, properties held for sale, inventories,
construction contract assets, financial assefs and disposal groups
classified as held for sale), the asset's recoverable amount is calculated
as the higher of the asset’s value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is defermined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assefs, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Cont'd)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds ifs recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted fo their present value using a pretax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged
o the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense cafegories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an assef other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the esfimates used fo determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been defermined [nef of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited fo the
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises.

Related parties

A party is considered fo be related fo the Group if:

[a)  the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

[il  has control or joint control over the Group;
i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i} is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Related parties (Cont'd)

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i

i

i)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity
[or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other

entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third enfity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related fo the
Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person

identified in (a);

a person identified in (a) ()] has significant influence over
the entity or is @ member of the key management personnel
of the entity (or of a parent of the enfity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a patt,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or fo the parent of the Group.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. When an item of property,
plant and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of
a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained in the
accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups held for
sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly atiributable costs of bringing the assets
fo its working condition and location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put info operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged fo the stafement of profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are safisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value
of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment are dealt with
as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve
is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess
of the deficit is charged to the statement of profit or loss. Any subsequent
revaluation surplus is credited fo the statement of profit or loss to the
extent of the deficit previously charged. An annual transfer from the asset
revaluation reserve to retained profits is made for the difference between
the depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of an asset
and the depreciation based on the asset’s original cost. On disposal
of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation reserve
realised in respect of previous valuations is fransferred fo refained profits

as a movement in reserves.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Cont'd)

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose

are as follows:

leasehold land

under finance leases Over the lease terms
Buildings 5%
10%-33'/, %

Equipment and machinery

Furniture and fixtures 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Motor yacht 10%

10%-33'/,%

leasehold improvements

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,

and adjusted if appropriate, af least af each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from ifs use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the nef
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for a property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to
eam rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction cosfs. Subsequent fo
initial recognition, investment properties are sfated at fair value, which
reflects market condifions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of invesiment
properiies are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the refirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year of
the refirement or disposal.

If o property occupied by the Group as an owneroccupied property
becomes an investment properly, the Group accounts for such property
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” up fo the date of change in use, and any
difference at that date between the carrying amount and the fair value
of the property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with the
policy stated under “Property, plant and equipment and depreciation”
above. For a transfer from inventories to investment properties, any
difference between the fair value of the property af that date and ifs
previous carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sales
fransaction rather than through continuing use. For this to be the case,
the asset or disposal group must be available for immediate sale in its
present condition subject only fo terms that are usual and customary
for the sale of such assets or disposal groups and its sale must be
highly probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a
disposal group are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether
the Group refains a non-onfrolling interest in its former subsidiary affer
the sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups [other than investment properties
and financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at the
lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less costs fo sell.
Property, plant and equipment and infangible assefs classified as held
for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

Properties under development

Properties under development which are developed in the ordinary
course of business are included in current assets at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The cost of properties under development comprises land cost,
construction costs, professional fees, borrowing costs capitalised
according fo the Group's policy and other directly affributable expenses
incurred during the development period. Net realisable value represents
the esfimated selling price, based on prevailing market conditions, less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

On completion of construction, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated in the statement of financial position
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, inferest capitalised during the period of development and
other direct cosfs aftributable to the development of the properties. Net
realisable value is determined by reference to the prevailing market
prices on an individual property basis, less all costs to completion, if
applicable, and costs of marketing and selling.

leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs fo the Group, other than legal fifle, are accounted for as finance
leases. At the inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the inferest element, fo
reflect the purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated over
the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss so as fo provide a consfant
periodic rafe of charge over the lease terms.

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assefs remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to the stafement of
profit or loss on the sfraightline basis over the lease terms.

Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straightline basis
over the lease terms.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assefs are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables and available-
forsale financial investments, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. When financial assefs
are recognised inifially, they are measured at fair value plus fransaction
costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets,
except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assefs are recognised
on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group commits fo purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assefs that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assefs depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial recognition
as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets are classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purposes of sale in the near
term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for frading unless they are designated as effective

hedging insfruments as defined by HKAS 39.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Cont'd)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. These net fair value
changes do not include any dividends on these financial assets, which
are recognised in accordance with the policies sef out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as separate
derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics
and risks are not closely related 1o those of the host contracts and the
host contracts are not held for trading or designated as at fair value
through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the stafement of profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the
fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
deferminable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After
initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance for
impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any
discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees or costs that are
an infegral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains in the statement
of profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in other expenses.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Availablefor-sale financial investments

Availablefor-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial assefs
in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for trading nor
designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After inifial recognition, availablefor-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the availableforsale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised, at
which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in the siatement
of profit or loss in other income, or unfil the investment is defermined
fo be impaired, when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the availableforsale investment revaluation reserve to the statement
of profit or loss in other gains or losses. Interest and dividends eamed
whilst holding the availableforsale financial investments are reported as
interest income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss as other income in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value esfimates is significant for that invesiment or (b) the probabilities of
the various estimates within the range cannot be reasonably assessed
and used in estimating fair value, such investments are stated at cost less
any impairment losses.
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Investments and other financial assets (Cont'd)

Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Availablefor-sale financial investments (Contdl)

The Group evaluates whether the ability and infention fo sell its available-
forsale financiol assefs in the near ferm are still appropriate. When, in
rare circumstances, the Group is unable fo frade these financial assets
due fo inactive markets, the Group may elect fo reclassify these financial
assefs if management has the ability and infention fo hold the assets for
the foreseeable future or until maturity.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-forsale category,
the fair value carrying amount af the date of reclassification becomes
its new amortised cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit or loss over the
remaining life of the investment using the effective inferest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is
also amortised over the remaining life of the assef using the effective
interest rate. If the assef is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the statement of profit or
loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset have an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that a debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assefs carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses
whether impairment exists individually for financial assefs that are
individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines that no objective
evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows [excluding future credit losses that have nof
yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted af the financial assef's original effective interest rate |i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rafe of inferest used fo discount the future cash flows
for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
fogether with any associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised

or has been fransferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss
is increased or reduced by adjusfing the allowance account. If a write-
off is lafer recovered, the recovery is credited to the statement of profit

or loss.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Availablefor-sale financial investments

For availableforsale financial investments, the Group assesses at the
end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that
an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost [net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the statement of profit or loss, is removed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in
the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is evaluated
against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged” against the
period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. Where
there is evidence of impairment, the cumulafive loss — measured as the
difference between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss — is removed from other comprehensive income
and recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through the statement of profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

"

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among other
factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an investment is
less than its cost.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised |i.e.,
removed from the Group's consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

o the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has fransferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation fo pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the
Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has fransferred ifs rights to receive cash flows from an
assef or has entered info a passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if and
fo what extent it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the
asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
Group confinues o recognise the fransferred asset fo the extent of the
Group's confinuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the assef and the maximum amount of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017

3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

Al financial liabiliies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings, net of directly affributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and refention payables,
other payables, interestbearing bank borrowings and guaranteed notes

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After inifial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when the liabiliies are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rafe amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
effective interest rafe. The effective interest rafe amortisation is included
in finance cosfs in the sfatement of profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Financial liabilities (Contd)
Subsequent measurement (Cont d)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracis issued by the Group are those confracts
that require a payment fo be made fo reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the ferms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract is recognised initially as a liability af its fair valve, adjusted
for fransaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent o inifial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the amount of the best
estimate of the expenditure required to seftle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period; and (i) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an exisfing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is freated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the nef amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right o offset the recognised amounts and there is an
infention to seffle on a net basis, or fo redlise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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(Contd)
Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward
currency contracts and interest rafe swaps, fo hedge ifs foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, respectively. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivafive confract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured
at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assefs when the fair value s
positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to the statement of profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in other
comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss when the
hedged item affects profit or loss.

Current versus non-current classification

Derivative instruments that are not designated as effective hedging
instruments are classified as current or non-current or separated into
current and non-current portions based on an assessment of the facts
and circumstances [i.e., the underlying contracted cash flows|.

*  Where the Group expects fo hold a derivative as an economic
hedge (and does not apply hedge accounting) for a period
beyond 12 months after the end of the reporting period, the
derivative is classified as non-current [or separated info current
and non-current portions) consistently with the classification of the
underlying item.

*  Embedded derivatives that are not closely related to the host
contract are classified consistently with the cash flows of the host
confract.

e Derivafive instruments that are designated as, and are effective
hedging instruments, are classified consistently with the
classification of the underlying hedged item. The derivative
instruments are separated info current porfions and non-current

portions only if a reliable allocation can be made.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost, on the firstin, firstout basis,
and net realisable value after making due allowance for any obsolete
or slow-moving items. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Construction contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount and
appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims and incentive
payments. Contract costs incurred comprise direct materials, the costs of
subcontracting, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of variable
and fixed consfruction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price construction contracts is recognised using
the percentage of completion method, measured by reference to the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total cost of the

relevant contract.

Revenue from cost plus construction contracts is recognised using the
percentage of completion method, by reference to the recoverable costs
incurred during the period plus the related fees eamed, measured by
the proportion of costs incurred fo date fo the estimated fofal cost of the

relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are anticipated
by management.

Where confract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is freated as an
amount due from a confract cusfomer.

Where progress billings exceed contract cosfs incurred to dafe plus
recognised profits less recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an
amount due to a contract customer.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposifs, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible info
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and
form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash
and bank balances comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are nof resfricted as fo use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required fo seftle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for
a provision is the present value af the end of the reporting period of
the future expenditures expected fo be required to sefile the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of fime is included in finance cosfs in the stafement of profit or
loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside sfafement of profit or loss is recognised, either
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assefs and liabiliies are measured at the amount expected
fo be recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorifies, based on fax
rates (and fax laws| that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period, taking info consideration inferpretations
and practices prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax [Cont'd))

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all tfemporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assefs and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

®  when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of
the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the femporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assefs are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused fax losses can be ufilised, except:

e when the deferred tax assef relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, af the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
faxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred fax assets are
only recognised fo the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and faxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Income tax (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred fax assefs is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
fax assefs are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset fo be recovered.

Deferred tax assefs and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected fo apply fo the period when the asset is realised or the liability
is seffled, based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred fax assets and deferred tox liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right fo set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate o income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend
either to seftle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to
realise the assefs and seffle the liabilities simulianeously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assefs
are expected fo be setfled or recovered.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Contd)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured reliably,

on the following bases:

(a)

(bl

[c]

(d)

(e)

(9)

From foundation piling and site investigation contracts

On the percentage of completion basis, as further explained in
the accounting policy for “Construction contracts” above;

From the sale of properties held for sale

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred 1o the buyer;

From machinery frading

When the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
fransferred fo the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with

ownership, nor effective control over the machines sold;
Rental income from property and machinery leasing

In the period in which the properties and machines are leased
and on the straightline basis over the lease ferms;

From the rendering of property and invesiment management
services

In the period in which such services are rendered;
Interest income

On an accrual basis using the effective interest rate method by
applying the rafe that exacily discounts the esfimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument fo the net

carrying amount of the financial asset; and

Dividend income

When shareholder’s right to receive payment has been

established.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute
o the success of the Group's operations. Employees (including directors)
of the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
insfruments {“equity-sefiled transactions”).

The cost of equity-seffled fransactions with employees for grants after 7
November 2002 is measured by reference fo the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model.

The cost of equity-setiled fransactions is recognised in employee benefit
expense, together with a corresponding increase in equily, over the
period in which the performance and/or service condifions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-sefiled transactions at the
end of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
fo which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best esfimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ulfimately vest. The charge
or credit fo the statement of profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as af the beginning
and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not faken into
account when defermining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within the grant date
fair value. Any other conditions affached to an award, but without
an associated service requirement, are considered fo be non-vesting
condifions. Non-vesfing conditions are reflected in the fair value of an
award and lead fo an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)
Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Share-based payments (Cont '

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance
and/or service conditions have not been met, no expense is
recognised. Where awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are freated as vesfing imespective of whether the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-seffled award are modified, as a minimum
an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been modified, if
the original ferms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the tofal fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial o the employee as
measured af the date of modification.

Where an equity-sefiled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it had
vesfted on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised
for the award is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where nonesfing conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement award on
the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are freated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees under their
employment contracts on a calendar year basis. Under certain
circumstances, such leave which remains untaken as at the end of the
reporting period is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is made af the
end of the reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried forward.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Employee benefits (Cont'd)

Pension schemes

The Group operated a defined contribution provident fund (the “Fund’)
for certain of its employees in Hong Kong, the assets of which were
held separately from those of the Group and were managed by an
independent professional fund manager. Confributions under the Fund
were made based on a percenfage of the eligible employees’ basic
salaries and were charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
became payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme. The
ongoing confributions fo the Fund were terminated on 1 April 1999.

Following the infroduction of the Mandatory Provident Fund retirement
benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), the Group has restructured ifs
relirement scheme arrangements to comply with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The Group has secured a Mandatory
Provident Fund exemption status for the Fund and, in addition, has
parficipated in an opproved defined contribution MPF Scheme with
effect from 1 December 2001, for all of its employees in Hong Kong.
Confributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
confributions vest fully with the employees when contributed info the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries located in Mainland China
are required fo parficipate in a central pension scheme operated by
the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to
confribute a cerfain percentage of their covered payroll to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the sftatement of profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the

central pension scheme.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capifalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their infended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
femporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capifalised.
All other borrowing cosfs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of inferest and other cosfs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Company's functional currency. Each entity in the Group defermines
its own functional currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency fransactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective funcfional currency rates prevailing af the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are franslated af the functional currency rafes of
exchange ruling af the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
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3.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Contd)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

Non-monetary items that are measured in ferms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are franslated using the exchange rates af the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
franslation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item [i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As af the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated info Hong Kong
dollars af the exchange rates prevailing af the end of the reporting
period and their stafements of profit or loss are franslated info Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resuliing exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On
disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relafing fo that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are franslated info Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the
year are franslated info Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management makes various judgements and esfimates based on past
experience, expectations of the future and other information. The key
sources of esfimation uncertainty that can significantly affect the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements are disclosed below:

Impairment of trade and retention receivables

The policy for impairment of frade and refention receivables of the
Group is based on the evaluation of collectibility and aging analysis
of frade and refention receivables and on management's judgement.
Significant judgement and esfimates is required in assessing the ultimate
realisation of these receivables, based on the current creditworthiness,
the past collection history and subsequent sefilements of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were fo deferiorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
provisions may be required. Further details are disclosed in note 23 to
the financial statements.

F3R 2017

147



148

Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

4.

EXRSRTHE R A5 (F)

BRTEZTTHEIL

AEERBERETRENANZTIA
DR - ARBEEEE /G
HIRZZTAN - ZEMBEIRE
BB AT FELE 2 BB -
ERENENEDHIRZANSBERT
REEMEIERZ AR - ERE
LANMAN  TIREPME - ST LA
Kz BEES DK AT RN TR

SRR - REKETTE - NEE
RESEMREFTSRESNRR I ESE
A2 & B kA AR 2 fhEt -

EETHRBENAR  EEEZ2E(|D
BEREERREIIHZRE (i) K
BEF ZERIRE Rl 9B
REBERTIAFEMRKAE - HIRAK
FBEMRARZ A5t EERY -

RIRIH R RAFAL R

AEBBRMZERDEER ZFAEH -
ErnARBSELANERREZE
AEREFEHERHE - EARXEHS
B ZEXGREEREMBALTE
TIERBERETE © B ZETEEZRER
BERENSCEERIE - RARE
BRFEFELETHEMERMET
RIERE - E—SHBRERNAENH
WARMFET K33

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Percentage of completion of construction works

The Group recognises revenue according to the percentage of
completion of the individual contract of construction works. The Group's
management estimates the percenfage of completion of consfruction
works based on actual costs incurred over the total budgeted costs.
Corresponding contract revenue was also estimated by management
based on contract sum and works values from variation works. Because
of the nature of the activities undertaken for the construction contracts,
the dafe at which the contracts are entered into and the date when the
contract are completed usually fall into different accounting periods. The
Group reviews and revises the estimates of both contract revenue and
contract costs in the budget prepared for each construction contract as
the confract progresses.

When determining the fofal budgeted costs, management makes
reference to information such as (i) current or recent offers from
subcontractors and suppliers, [ii] variation orders received from
customers, and (iii] estimation on material costs, labour costs and other
costs for the complefion of the projects provided by quantity survey
department.

Current and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount of the
provision for tax and the timing of payment of the related taxes. There
are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax defermination
is uncerfain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were inifially
recorded, such differences will have an impact on the income tax and
deferred fax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made. Further defails are disclosed in notes 11 and 33 fo the financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Mainland China land appreciation taxes ("LAT’)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from sales of properties
less deductible expenditures including amortisation of land use
rights, borrowing costs, business taxes and all property development
expenditures. The tax is incurred upon fransfer of property ownership.

Subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to LAT. The Group has not
vet finalised ifs LAT calculation and payments for certain of its property
development projects with various tax authorities and the deductibility
of expenditures incurred for each project is uncertain. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management's best estimates with reference fo the
past experience, fax regulations and correspondences with local tax
authorities. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the consolidated financial statements in the period in which such
determination is made. Further defails are disclosed in note 11 to the
financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Cont'd)

Write-down of properties under development

The Group performs a regular review on the carrying amounts of
property under development. Based on management's review, write-
down of property under development will be made when the estimated
nef realisable value has declined below the carrying amount.

In defermining whether write-down should be made for the Group's
properiies under development, the Group fakes info consideration the
current market environment and the estimated net realisable value |i.e.
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
esfimated costs of complefion and the esfimated cost necessary to make
the sale). A writedown is made if the estimated or actual net realisable
value of the properties under development is less than expected as a
result of change in market condition and/or significant variation in the
budgeted development cost. Further defails are disclosed in note 19 to
the financial stafements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Operating segments are reported
in @ manner consistent with internal reporting to the Company's key
management personnel as follows:

(a)  the foundation piling segment (including site investigation
operation];

(b)  the property development and investment segment;
[c]  the invesiment segment; and

(d)  the “corporate and others” segment comprises, principally, the
Group's corporate operation, and machinery leasing and frading
businesses.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted
profit/loss before tax.

The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax from continuing operations except that interest
income, finance costs and fair value gains/losses from the Group's

financial instruments are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude derivative financial instrument, deferred tax
assefs, fax prepaid and time deposits as these assefs are managed on
a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interestbearing bank borrowings, tax
payable and deferred tax liabilities as these liabilities are managed on
a group basis.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are fransacted with reference to the
selling prices used for sales made fo third parties af the then prevailing
market prices.

During the vear, the Group started fo involve in the investment business.
The financial results of investment business were reported as a separate
segment under the “investment” segment in current year's financial
statements. Also, the financial results of the property development and
property investment and management segments of the Group, which
were reported as separate segments in prior years' financial statements
are reported in aggregate under the “property development and
investment” segment during the year for the management's purpose of
better resources allocation and performance assessment. Comparative
figures of the segment information have been reclassified fo conform
with the current year's presentation.
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

5. RENEER(Z) 5.  OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd)
W5 IEEF] Geographical information
() REMEEFUKEGE (a)  Revenue from external customers
&% -1y YEEE 52
Hong Kong Macay Eewhere in fhe PRC Consolidted
B-E-1E EZE-0E BIEE BTE-NE

B2 [L3-A% g2 [R-RZ g2 [R-RZ g2 [A-RZ
ZE3-E BF 0 IBtE 0 B BHE R BHE R
t2R=t-8 tZA=t- fIBZt-R tZAT-R fIBZt-R fZAST-R fIBIt-R f2ASTR
5§ HE &3 EHE 833 EHE 833 i

Yer  Peiodfom Yer  Peiodfom Yer — Periodfom Ve Periodfom

enced 1 A 1610 enced 1 Apl 1610 ended 1 Al 2610 ended | Apil 01610
31December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Decamber 31 December 31 Decenber
017 06 017 06 007 016 007 016

A AT i AT i 7T i 7T
L /YA 11/ 17/ /A 1/ /A 1/ M 1141

pEUE Seqrent revente

HETIERP Soles fo exerol cusomers 2353979 2141464 300 543 733085 898953 390,1% 3030360

TN RERABREREMNE & The revenue information above is based on the locations of the
ko customers.
b) FRBEE (b)  Non-current assets
g 5 HEEHHE fa
Hong Kong Macu Esewhere i he PRC Consolideted

NI S SUR e S S S
017 pulle 017 pulle 07 pulle 017 pulle
i omE om0 o @ @
7 107/ 11/ 4101/ 11/ 411/ 1/ 4111

Up 081 336820 - -

§ 195,469 o9 33289

RS EEANEEMTEMNE The non-current assets information above is based on the locations
REEBTRERELHIBEE - of the assets and excludes deferred tax asses.
BH—ETEEFZEH Information about a major customer
Y 2 #9844,447 0003 (& = = Revenue of approximately HK$844,447,000 (period ended 31
E—RNE+-_A=+—HBI-HH: December 2016: HK$554,702,000) was derived from sales by the
554,702,000 ) J5 3R B EITH 5 foundation piling segment to a single customer.

BrR—2E-FPEHZHE -
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HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET

Revenue represents the aggregate of the value of foundation piling and
sife investigation contracts; income derived from property management;
rental income from properly leasing; income from the sale of properties
held for sale; and management fee income from an investment fund,
after eliminations of all significant infragroup fransactions.

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains, net is as follows:

BZE—RE
MA—RZE
SES —T—RF
—Z2—+F +ZA=+-H
+=ZA=1+—H 1 HARE
LEE Period from
Yearended 1 April 2016 fo
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FHET T
HK$°000 HK$ 000
Wias Revenue:
HWESTIE R & Foundation piling and site invesfigation 2,494,053 2,115,532
MEERLIRE Property development and investment 738,420 888,553
RE—BRERGZERERA Management fee income from an
investment fund 6,443 -
Hip Others 51,240 26,475
3,290,156 3,030,560
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

6. Wi - HRARER > FEE 6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS, NET
(&) (Cont'd
BEZT—RF
mA—HZ=
S N
2t +ZA=1+—H
+=A=+-H AR
HEFE Period from

Year ended 1 April 2016 fo
31 December 31 December

2017 2016
FiBT FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
HpA R BH - %8 Other income and gains, nef:
FEWA Interest income 15,844 10,235
REEERE Insurance claims 1,623 4
AL Subsidy income* - 205
RNHERF - FE Fair value gains, net:
BAHEFABRZ SREE Financial asset af fair value through
profit or loss 10,865 -
THETA-TEERERRS Derivative instrument - fransaction not
qualifying as hedge - 27,662
HE—TERATHEFABRZZ Gain on disposal of an investment fund
REES 2 Wa at fair value through profit or loss 11,163 -
B RBKA Management service income 247 312
HE - B R R 2B (5L 44)  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
(note 44 - 126
HEMZE « #BERFZEER 28F  Gain on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment 7,308 8,610
X &N - HEE Foreign exchange gains, net 4,928 -
Hith Others 4,869 8,995
56,847 56,149
* BRZIBM AL EARER Z (I * There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating fo this income.
REM -
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HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. FINANCE COSTS

Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts

Interest on guaranteed notes

less: Inferest capitalised in properties under
development [note 19)

31 December 2017 —

T—+tH+=-A=+—H

BZE—RF

MA—HZE

Bz ZT—RF
—2—+tF +ZA=1+—H
+ZB=+—H 1FHAR]
IHFE Period from

Year ended 1 April 2016 fo
31 December 31 December
2017 2016

FET FET

HK$ 000 HK$'000
115,576 15,621
7,944 —

(105,030 (6,556)
18,490 9,065
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

8. BRBLAN&EF 8.  PROFIT BEFORE TAX
AEEZBRBADEFIENRGtA)T The Group's profit before fax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
IR IERER

B=F—AF
mMA—HZ
BZE —E—RF
—2—+tF +ZA=1-H
+t=ZA=+—H 1R

IHFEE Period from
Yearended 1 April 2016 to
i 31 December 31 December

Nofes 2017 2016
FET BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEEMEMAR Cost of properties sold 639,055 555,724
MESTHRIRHE TR Cost of foundation piling and
DN sife invesfigation work 2,355,902 1,849,789
FTiR AR A AR Cost of services rendered 95,050 49,530
e Depreciation 15 61,388 56,816
ReBH 2z KEHOMK Minimum lease payments under
operating leases 45,719 33,208
ZERBE Auditor's remuneration 3,180 1,826
EERIXE (BEES Employee benefit expense (including
& —Ki:E0) - directors' remuneration - note 9):
TERES Wages and salaries 461,982 357,254
B2 B REEAL Management incentive bonus* - 192,408
RIREFEIER Pension scheme contributions 18,816 14,778
480,798 564,440
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HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017

—Z—+tF+=-A=+—8

BB AN =R () 8. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Contd)
AEBE 2 BRBAERIEME (Gt T The Group's profit before fax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
PR IERER : (%) (Cont'd)
B-Z—RF
IEH Az
ﬁg 7 /\EE
“Z2—+t% +ZH=t—H
+tZR=+-H (- EAE]
ILFE Period from
Yearended 1 April 2016 10
i3 31 December 31 December
Notes 2017 2016
FET T
HK$'000 HK$ 000
SNEEE B,/ (BA) - JF58 ™ Foreign exchange losses/(gains), net* (4,928 6,616
FEWE 5 BRFURE * Impairment of trade receivables* 23 - 25
Htt EWFERE Impairment,/(writeback of
OBl (ERE ) impairment] of other receivables* 24 1,029 [ 50]
HEME - s Gain on disposal of items
RIEEE 2 BHM* of property, plant and equipment* (7,308) (8,610)
HE—RITELRRZ&F*  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary* 43 - (126)
NFEBRE/ (BF) - FE  Fairvalue losses/|gains), net
mATESABRZ Financial asset af fair value through
TREE" profit or loss* (10,865) -
TTHETA-TEEH Derivative insfrument - fransaction not
5 qualifying as hedge* 33,057 (27,662)
HE— IETHA-T—TEJJ\TE Gain on disposal of an invesiment fund
REREG 2 WE at fair value through profit or loss* (11,163) -
REMEZ N TEED Changes in fair value of investment
properties 16 (23,175) (23,215)
—MEE R R ZRFRME*  Impaiment of an amount due from
an associate ® 13 2
HEREHEN2HES WA Rental income from operating leases
of machinery (16,560) (10,562)
REMEESRA Rental income from invesiment properties (7,407) [5,483]
REVZERIESRFEED  Direct operating expenses (including
BREEERX repairs and mainfenance) arising
(BREEERE) from rentaleaming investment
properties 885 829
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

8.

BRBLADER ()

AEEZBRBADEMEMR,GIAT
DIBIARIES : (&)

*

FHcBCeRERaBaR2Z/H
oS o FE I E WA RET]
RN -

AEERERNTESRRRERER
m—IERBEE - ERERBIEL
B2EARAMERZREFE
WARAZHEEE - RZEBE
BT ARB ENGAREBLA
TEBEROEN  BHERZRE
AEZ2BEINBERARFE
1B4.5% 2 #EEHIA KA BERK
R2BPER_B-—RERA=T
A5k W8S RERE 3
#197,981,000/8 T 2 #@EFIA -
BH 192,408,000 TREBEZE
—RE+ZA=T BB
¥ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Contd)

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(credifing):
(Contd)

*

These amounts are included in “Other expenses, net” or "Other income
and gains, net” in the consolidated sfatement of profit or loss.

The Group adopted an incentive scheme in favour of its executive
directors and senior management. The management incentive bonus was
calculated by reference to dividends declared by the Company and in
the event that there is a change in control of the Company, unvested
rights in this incentive scheme will vest immediately and no further grants
will be made but an aggregate payment equal to 4.5% of the value of
the Company will be made tfo the participants in that incentive scheme.
The change of the controlling shareholder of the Company, which was
completed on 30 June 2016, triggered an aggregate payment of
approximately HK$197,981,000 under the incenfive scheme, out of
which HK$192,408,000 was recorded as an expense for the period
ended 31 December 2016.



HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

EEME 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
B MR - BADEIEHIZE 383(1) Directors remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
[a) ~ (b) ~ (c) B (f 16 Ko 2 ) (HE 55 28 B 4 Rules, section 383(1)(al, (b), [c) and [f] of the Hong Kong Companies
AR GO 2N RBELRFEEEMH Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information
ST about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
BZZ—RF
MA—RZE
BE ZERF
—2—+tF¥ +-A=1—H
+=ZA=1+—H LEHARE
HEE Period from
Year ended 1 April 2016 to
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Fees:
HITES Executive directors - —
FHTES Non-executive directors 288 124
BUFNTES Independent non-executive directors 1,392 936
MITEF CHMME - Other emoluments of executive directors:
N - RBEREYF R Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 47 948 16,054
EAEAT Performance related bonuses * — 153,926
RIRSFTEIHT Pension scheme confributions 81 42
49,709 171,082
* AAFMTESLE—HEEE - * Executive directors of the Company participated in an incentive scheme.
BERE S 2 E— S EREN Further details of the incentive scheme were disclosed in note 8 to the
BREMES financial statements.

F3; 2017 163



Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

9. EEME(E) 9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Cont'd)

ENZENGUEEMIT :

The remuneration paid or payable fo each of the direcfors is as follows:

28
RENFE pidrNe
Salaries, ENRA HE
allowances  Performance Pension
#&  and benefits related scheme it
Fees in kind bonuses  contributions Total
FET FiE7z FET FET FiE7
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
HEZE-t& Year ended 31 December
+ZB=t-HLEE 2017
HTES: Executive directors:
BHREES Mr. Huang Qijun® - 925 - - 925
il ek Mr. Zhao Quan® - - - - -
BRELE Mr. Fung Chiu Chek, Victor
) 'Mr. Fung') - 25217 - 18 25,235
BREBLE Mr. Chiu Chin Hung* - 5,930 - 10 5,940
Bpmr Mr. lau Kin Fai® - 5,855 - 10 5,865
BEHLL M. Liu Junchun' - 3,600 - 20 3,620
BERE Mr. Fan Ning’ - 1,265 - - 1,265
FKERE Mr. Meng Yongiao” - 1,195 - - 1,195
BAEEES Mr. Mu Xianyi® - - - - -
ERMmELE? Mr. Wong Tai lun Kenneth? - 3,711 - 18 3,729
FHERES Mr. Mung Hon Ting, Jackie? - 250 - 5 255
BEHLAD Mr. Li Xiaoming'® - - - - -
- 47 948 - 81 48,029
FHTES: Non-executive directors:
HEXEES Mr. Tang King Shing® 144 - - - 144
Gl e Mr. Tang Kif® 144 - - - 144
288 - - - 288
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9.

EEME(E)

ENSENSUEEHENT : (£)

HECE—tF
TZA=+-ALEEE)

BUFHTES

BIEERE
AR
ETHRL
FRIEE
REETHS

st

Year ended 31 December
2017 [Contd))

Independent non-executive
directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. lung Chee Ming, George
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Mr. leung Kai Cheung®

Total

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd)

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

(Contd]
E147 R=4l

REWFG Birg

Salaries, ENRA e

allowances  Performance Pension
% and benefits related scheme @t
Fees in kind bonuses  confributions Total
FET FET FET FET FiE
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
312 - - - 312
312 - - - 312
312 - - - 312
312 - - - 312
144 - - - 144
1,392 - - - 1,392
1,680 47 948 - 81 49,709
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31 December 2017 ZZ—+F+=-A=+—H

9.

ESME(E)

ENSENSUEEHENT : (£)

HE2-Z—5%E
+-A=t-BItHE

HirEs:

HERLS
FRERL"
BiE
HRBEL
iyt
AEFLE
EERL
SKERE

FHITES !

HESRE
TRELAT
Stuart Morrison Grant L4 1!
ZREERE
ERREAE"

BUFHTES:

BEERE
Ak
ETHRE
FhRE

st
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Period ended 31 December
2016

Executive directors:

Mr. Zhoo Quan®

Mr. Li Tongshuang'?

Mr. Fung

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung*
Mr. Lau Kin Fai

Mr. Liv Junchun'

Mr. Fan Ning”

Mr. Meng Yongtoo”

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Liv Junchun'

Mr. Wang Tianbing'’

Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant'!
Mr. Justin Wail'

Mr. Law Yiu Fat Richard!!

Independent non-executive
directors:

Mr. Fan Chor Ho

Mr. Tse Man Bun

Mr. Lung Chee Ming, George
Mr. Li Kit Chee

Total

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd)

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

(Contd)
Eadil =i

RENHE BiRg

Salaries, Eyuepal HEaS

alowances  Performance Pension
#%  and benefits related scheme Bt
Fees in kind bonuses  contribufions Tofel
FET FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
- 8,208 06,204 14 104,516
- 3,182 28,861 14 32,057
- 3,080 28,861 14 31,955
- 765 - - 765
- 729 - - 729
- 16,054 153,926 47 170,022
124 - - - 124
124 - - - 124
234 = - - 234
234 7= = = 234
234 = = = 234
234 = = = 234
936 = = = 036
1,060 16,054 153,926 4?2 171,082




EEME(E)

ENSENSUEEHENT : (£)

GEE

1

AEHRELEB-T—RFLA-TI
REEZIRFNTEE YB-F
—NF+Z A+ ZHRAEART
g%

ERMAEREIANTES 8-
F—rE—AHRAREH -

BHRARERBERAERZIAH
TEF A2 tFLAtHAR
R

BREELERIBELEBHENTE
¥ ACEtLFLATRAREE
i o

R

BEREERBPREERZERIH
TEF A2 tFLAtHAR
R

REEFERZARBUNNTE
¥ ACEtLFLATRAREE
i o

R

BERERFKBREE T —RF
TAZ TN EREZERRITES
VTE-E—tFLATHHEREEIHN
TES -

BREEEE-T-AFT-AZTC
AEEZERHTESE YA-F
—tFT - ATHRRBRERTE
Eg

FHERLREEARTES A
Tt A-BRER

FEAREEEEANTES 6=
T+ A= HABRER

FTXREHAE « Stuart Morrison Grant %t
£ BB ERERE R AR
HWTES BT —~FtA=Z+h
HABAEM o

TREXEA-T—AFLA-Th
AREZTAHTEE WAZ-T
—RNET A+ -BREEHTE
=

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT
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31 December 2017 —F—+4+=fA=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Contd

The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:

(Contd]

Notes:

1

Mr. Liu Junchun was appointed as a non-executive director with effect
from 29 July 2016 and redesignated as an executive director with effect
from 22 December 2016.

Mr. Wong Tai Lun Kenneth was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 26 January 2017.

Mr. Huang Qijun and Mr. Mu Xianyi were appointed as executive
directors with effect from 15 July 2017.

Mr. Chiu Chin Hung and Mr. Lou Kin Fai resigned as executive directors
with effect from 15 July 2017.

Mr. Tang King Shing and Mr. Tang Kit were appointed as non-executive
directors with effect from 15 July 2017.

Mr. leung Kai Cheung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director with effect from 15 July 2017.

Mr. Fan Ning and Mr. Meng Yongtao were appointed as executive
directors with effect from 29 July 2016 and resigned with effect from 15
July 2017.

Mr. Zhao Quan was appointed as an executive director with effect from
22 December 2016 and resigned with effect from 15 December 2017.

Mr. Mung Hon Ting, Jackie was appointed as an executive director with
effect from 1 October 2017.

Mr. i Xicoming was appointed as an executive director with effect from
29 December 2017.

Mr. Wang Tianbing, Mr. Stuart Morrison Grant, Mr. Justin Wai and Mr.
law Yiu Fat Richard resigned as non-executive directors with effect from
29 July 2016.

Mr. Li Tongshuang was appointed as an executive director with effect
from 29 July 2016 and resigned with effect from 22 December 2016.
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

9.

EEME(E) 9. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Cont'd)
BN ENBUEEMENT : (£) The remuneration paid or payable to each of the directors is as follows:
(Contd)
AEEHBESENEIR S HETMH There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to
TR waive any remuneration during the year.
hluGeHFZEE 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
AEERINERHEEER=-%EZF The five highest paid employees during the year included three directors
(BEZZE—R"E+ZA=+—HLH (period ended 31 December 2016: three directors), details of whose
fl: =Z2EF) HMEHBEHNEX remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Defails of the remuneration for
fEE0 - AFEHRTMAL(BE-_T—X the year of the remaining two (period ended 31 December 2016: two)
F+ZA=+—HILHE : Wi)3FE non-director highest paid employees are as follows:
EREHEECHMEMT -
BT RF
mMA—BZ
S —TRF
—Z—t% +ZA=1-H
TZA=t—H 1-EARE
HFE Period from
Year ended 1 April 2016 fo
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FiBT FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
BB - EBREYF = Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 8,869 4915
B Performance related bonuses * — 23,090
R ETEIHR Pension scheme contributions 18 14
8,887 28,019

Y FEEREFCEESEREEE
8 - AREEE B E—SHERE
B IMRMIFES

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

The non-director highest paid employees participated in an incentive
scheme. Further details of the incentive scheme were disclosed in note 8
to the financial statements.



HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W B it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

10. AuGEH2ZES(ZE) 10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Contd)
EUTHFNEEAZ FEEBRRHEE The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration
ABIT fell within the following bands is as follows:

BEAH
Numbers of employees

B-F—~F

mA—-HAZz

BE “E-RF

—E-tf +tZA=t-H

+ZA=+—H (- EAfE]

HFE Period from

Yearended 1 April 2016 fo

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

4,000,000 LE HK$4,000,000 to HK$4,500,000
4,500,000 7T 1 -
4,500,001 BLE HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000

5,000,000 %7T 1 -
13,500,001 & LE HK$13,500,001 to HK$ 14,000,000

14,000,000 7T — ]
14,000,001 BLE HK$14,000,001 to HK$ 14,500,000

14,500,000 7T - ]

2 2
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11. PREH 11. INCOME TAX

BEBFCREFARBBEE 25
ERTGH 2 16.5%(HE_E—RF
+-RA=+—HLLHM: 16.5%)EH
B o PR E MR R TR A 2 TR
BEAEBELIRE 2 RITEAR KR

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% [period
ended 31 December 2016: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere in the PRC have been calculated at the applicable tax rates
prevailing in the areas in which the Group operates.

sty

170

B-ZT—RF
mA—B=Z
RS TR
—F-tF tZAZt-H
+tZRA=+—-H 1-EARE
HFE Period from
Year ended 1 April 2016 fo
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
TET THET
HK$000 HK$'000
ENER - Current:
AEE/BEREFZ Provision for fax in respect of profit
PIRR - for the year/period:
FE PRC:
BB Hong Kong 31,747 43,875
Hibi R Elsewhere 14,175 205,999
45,922 249,874
FEERRRE Overprovision in the prior years:
FE PRC:
Bk Hong Kong (60) (60
H b= Elsewhere (53,748) [4,688)
(53,808 (4,748
EERIA(MIFE33) Deferred tax (note 33) 97,921 (18,485)
AEE /B2 BAR X 5 Total fax charge for the year/ period 90,035 226,641
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1. FRGBL(E)

BRRUARE REAREHBEARM
HEEIR R AT R B ZRBA
N 2 BIRR S A B R KA E 2

BRI BRI

BRI AR R

WEEM KA E 2R
TR EREE
THRERZRETE
st 2 BN IA T
ZAE
BARBBA
ANTFHIRAIR P
sAKEREAMHE LR Z
A TROE 2
BHRFE
FHEZHEARNELZ
EREER
PRBEFEZHEER
REERHIREE

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11. INCOME TAX (Cont'd]

effective tax rafes is as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the statufory rates

Provision for land appreciation fax

Tax effect of land appreciation fax

Adjustments in respect of current fax
of prior years

Income not subject to tax

Expenses not deductible for fax

Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
profits of the Group's subsidiaries in
Mainland China

Temporary difference arising from disposal
groups held for sale

Tax losses utilised from prior years

Tax losses not recognised

BASBEERNENE 2 HIERX Tox charge af the Group's effective rate

31 December 2017 —

T—+tH+=-A=+—H

A reconciliation of the tax charge applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the countries or regions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax charge af the

B-ZE—F

MA—HZ

S “E-RF
“Z2—+F +ZA=+—H
+ZA=+—H 1FERA
ItFE Period from
Yearended 1 Apiil 2016 to
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FEr FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
95,468 354,998
13,208 69,588
10,807 117,068
53,350 (7,150)
(53,808 (4,748)
(6,903) 16,078)
28,568 62,936
(37,083 (16,141)
78,809 =
(5.738) 333)
8,825 11,499
90,035 226,641
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12.

BARAFHEZHEAR

)

R-E—tF+—A+=0 BRKE
BRLA] - LEREBSRUMERLE
ROF - AAIXREBRARREME
BRAR(GHEI LEEL | BAKR
AZEENBAR) EEREMENK
BERAR(IBMER ] —HRPE
I BER DB MEBMEEBRARZ
WEAR  BMEEERAR/ALNE
ZHEERLR)HRAREREARE
585,800,000t HE FBEFRRA
iz 2 abRERT MRS E i (T
BHE]) - ®RA LR —MRF B
ZE—HBRR ELBEEEERA
EYEBRRER(AHEMER)ES - &
WaEFEREHEEEENE  HREAD
HOREMERE -

R-E—tF+t—-A+=R BER
RABR(DERER | ARFEZ2EM
BRR)EEHEMEARRBREEE
BOBARAR(DEMERRE] - —F
RPBKRICERAR ERMEL
BEIMLED  LRAEBMEBERA
AZMBRARRAREREARK
762,000,000 tHEERGETNER
52 2Rl R MR E A (R
BHE]) - RABGR—HRPEKL
ZE—HBRAR BERBEEEERA
EYEBRER (AHEMNER)EE - &
W F BREHEEEDE -
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12. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

On 13 November 2017, Greatf Regent Invesiments Limited, Shanghai
Changning Duncan Property Consulting Company Limited, Red Shine
Investment Limited and Carriway Limited (collectively, the “Shanghai
Sellers”), each being a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered info an equity fransfer agreement with Hainan HNA Shou
Fu Investment Co., Lid. ["HNA Shou Fu"), a company esfablished in
the PRC with limited liability and a subsidiary of HNA Group Co.,
ltd., which is an intermediate holding company of the Company,
for disposal of the Shanghai Sellers” entire equity interests in Tysan
Shanghai af a cash consideration of RMB585.8 million (the “Shanghai
Disposal’). Tysan Shanghai is a single project company established
in the PRC engaging in the operation of a residential and commercial
property development project, namely The Waterfront, in Shanghai. It
primarily derives its revenue from the sales of residential property and to
a relatively minor extent, leasing of property.

On 13 November 2017, Sparkle Key Limited (the “Shenyang Seller’),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into an equity
fransfer agreement with Hainan HNA Infrastructure Investment Group
Co., Ud. ["HNA Infrastructure”], a company established in the PRC
with limited liability whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange and a subsidiary of HNA Group Co., lid., for disposal of
the Shenyang Seller’s entire equity interest in Tysan Shenyang at a cash
consideration of RMB762 million (the “Shenyang Disposal”]. Tysan
Shenyang is a single project company esfablished in the PRC engaging
in the operation of a residential and commercial property development
project, namely The Pinnacle, in Shenyang. It primarily derives its
revenue from the sales of residential property.



. PEAGHEZHEAR(E)

R-T—tF+—A+=H BEBER
AR(IRRET | ARAZ2ENE
AEREBHRENAURSREARY
435,800,000 tHEREEHINZER
R 2R Ea] RS E R (TR
RHE] - FRERER—HRFEKIL
ZE-HBRR EREEEEERAE
EMERREAB(ARURE)EE - £
BaERREHEEEDE -

REBHE  BBHERKZHETK
& FALS  HZABGLEFFEREH
TERARFZMB AR RARFEA
BRMEERBRPHFEMER - 1
“T—+HF+A=+—H  LtiHE
RPEHATTHK - AABESTEE LB
% BHHERRRHERR TN
FEEAMTK At FALE - R
AEGRFARER _T—tF+-H
=t-HZBERRBENDBABHE
Z HEHH -

12.

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Contd)

On 13 November 2017, Great Prosper limited (the “Tianjin Seller”], o
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered info an equity transfer
agreement with HNA Shou Fu for disposal of Tianjin Seller's entire
equity inferest in Tysan Tianjin at a cash consideration of RMB435.8
million (the “Tianjin Disposal”). Tysan Tianjin is a single project company
established in the PRC engaging in the operation of a residential and
commercial property development project, namely The Riverside, in
Tianjin. It primarily derives its revenue from the sales of residential

property.

Upon completion of the Shanghai Disposal, Shenyang Disposal and
Tianjin Disposal, Tysan Shanghai, Tysan Shenyang and Tysan Tianijin
will cease to be subsidiaries of the Company and the Company will
no longer have any interest in the property development projects. As
at 31 December 2017, the above disposal transaction had yet to
be completed. The direcfors of the Company expect the Shanghai
Disposal, Shenyang Disposal and Tianjin Disposal to be completed
before the end of 2018. Accordingly, the assefs and liabilities of Tysan
Shanghai, Tysan Shenyang and Tysan Tianjin as at 31 December
2017 were classified as disposal groups held for sale.
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12. PEAGHEZHEAR(E) 12. DISPOSAL GROUPS CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE
(Contd)
R-ZT—+F+-_A=+—8 oA The maijor classes of assets and liabiliies of Tysan Shanghai, Tysan
FHEZRA LS RRABGRRRX Shenyang and Tysan Tianjin classified as held for sale as at 31
EZITEEERBERRNT December 2017 are as follows:
s TIET
Notes HK$'000
BE Assets
ERNS S Property, plant and equipment 15 4,278
REME Investment properties 16 227,814
A HERE Availableforsale investment 1,196
BETRIEEE Deferred tax assets 33 960
BRPME Properties under development 19 14,864
FAMHEE 2ME Properties held for sale 21 1,460,278
FEWE BRI R E & Trade and retention receivables 496
NI - fTe REMEKFUR Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 10,085
RHHA Tax prepaid 15,649
RekZEREEER Cash and cash equivalents 448,337
DEAFHEZEE Assets classified as held for sale 2,183,957
=7 liabilities
ENESEIREMNRES KR Trade and retention payables and
JERTHE accruals 280,400
HiENFIE  EWEI2 R Other payables, deposits received and
AW receipts in advance 34,824
BdETe Deposits received 54,428
TR Tax payable 5,428
ERRIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 33 41,129
BEABRFHECEE liabilities directly associated with the assets
EREHCAE classified as held for sale 416,209
BHERARNERARMFEE Net assefs directly associated with the
disposal groups 1,767,748
HERR 2 EE R Statutory reserve of the disposal groups 48,750
HEARI BEB K Asset revaluation reserve of the disposal groups 4,129
HEA R BRI E Exchange fluctuation reserve of the
disposal groups 55,862
LEHE  BHHERRELE CE— Further defails of the Shanghai Disposal, Shenyang Disposal and Tianjin
FHBRARRABAE S —+F+— Disposal were disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 13
AT=BZRERABRR-_T—tF November 2017 and a circular dated 7 December 2017.

T AERZERRE -
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

13. RE 13. DIVIDENDS

B-ZT—RF
MA—HZE
Bz “ERF
—Z2—t% ftZA=t—A
+t=A=+—H AR
HEE Period from
Yearended 1 April 2016 to
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000

AEE/HRIRARE - Dividends paid during the year/period:

BE_ZT—R"F+-A=1—H Final in respect of the financial period

LA B R EA R B ended 31 December 2016 -

—BREBR10.03( HK10.0 cents per

(HE_Z—RF ordinary share

“A=t+—BIFE: E) [year ended 31 March 2016: Nil) 113,416 —
BRI REIRE. Proposed final dividend:

REAR S — S EE10.0 Final = HK10.0 cents (period ended 31

BU(BEZZ—RF December 2016:

+=ZA=+—HI HK10.0 cents)

HAR - 10.0%84L) per ordinary share 340,249 113,416
AFEERBIRN 2 KRR EBEAR AT The proposed final dividend for the year is subject fo the approval of
BRERREIE AR RRBEFKE it the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
JE o R TS R R 00 M e Bk PR AN R A AR These financial statements do not reflect the final dividend payable.

B o
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14, RRAFEBRRREIEZRER

BREAXZFDBEARR R BRRK
BRE1EE R T 6,004,0008 T(HE
TE-RE+-A=F+—BILHE:
134,050,000 L) R ERERITZE
Bz ANHE T 5 202, 380,256,154 1%
(BE-T—A"FE+-A=+—ALHY
B : E51A1,041,131,280 )5 & -
AEEREARFNFABEE-_S—+F
+-A=Z+-BLEFEREE-T—X
F+ZA=+—BIBEZEHTER
MEFHEHECERALERES - UM
RZE—tF AR BB FE -

BE_Z—tFT-A=T—HILFE
FPEHE-T-—RF+-A=t—HIH
B AREYECRTECHEIER
% o
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamings per share amount is based on
the profit for the year aftributable to ordinary equity holders of the
Company of HK$6,004,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
HK$134,050,000), and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 2,380,256,154 (period ended 31 December 2016: restated
as 1,041,131,289) in issue during the year. The weighted average
number of shares in issued for both year ended 31 December 2017
and period ended 31 December 2016 used in the basic eamings per
share calculation have been adjusted or resfated fo reflect the effect of
the rights issue completed in June 2017.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and period ended 31 December
2016.



15. ¥ - #EKkxfE

ZE—+EFZB=1-H 31 December 2017

WA
&
HE
HhE /W

FADBRBHEZLE
Bl BE (M 12)

(B R

R-E—1F
+-A=t-8

ZiHERAE

&
REERERR

HhE /W

FADBRBHEZLE
Bl BE (M 12)

(B R

R-E—tF
+-A=t-8

REFE:

Cost:

At beginning of year

Additions

Disposals/writeoff

Assels included in disposol
groups clossfied as
heldforscle (nofe 12)

Exchange redlignment

At 31 December 2017

Accumulated depreciation

and impaiment:

At beginning of year

Depreciafion provided
during the year

Disposols /writeoff

Assefs included in disposal
groups clossfed as
heldforscle (nofe 12)

Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017

Net carrying amourt;

At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2016

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RER fiR

Bz %E g

1#EEF  Equipment  Fumiture at:l BE WEEE
ond and and and Motor Motor  Leasehold 25t
buildings  machinery fitures ~ vehicles yacht - improvements Tofal
FEr FiEr FEn FEr FAr A FEr
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKSO00
215235 930711 5,661 19,674 6,098 20710 1,198,089
- 9,868 671 369 - 2,483 13,391
- (%9938 (178 726) - (2,007)  (42,849)
(2,227) (2,692) (182) (5,405) - (2458 (12964)
158 215 14 400 - 242 1,029
213,066 898,164 5,986 14312 6,098 18970 1,156,696
44283 818728 3,859 12,929 6,098 15209 901,106
7,871 48,567 664 1,998 - 2288 61,388
- (%9121 (119 (676) - (2,007)  (41923)
(605) (2,321) (103) (4,267) - (1,370) (8,686)
4 168 8 309 - 145 691
51,590 826,041 4,309 10273 6,098 14265 912,576
161,576 72123 1,677 4,039 - 4705 244120
170952 111,983 1,802 6,745 - 5501 296983
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

15. W% - WBERRB(E) 15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont'd)
RER BAR
#a ] i
THEEF  Equipment Fumiture 8 e MERE
Lond and ond and Motor Molor  Leasehold a5t
buldings ~ machinery fixtures vehicles yocht  improvements Tolal

TEL TAL 7L TEL TEL 7L TEL
H$000  HKS000  HKEO00 HKSO0 HKSO00  HKS000 kSO0

ZE-~EFZAZT-H 31 December 2016

WA Cost
1) At beginning of period 2017348 904,183 4313 19,138 6,098 17811 1228891
hE Addiions - 16,035 1,401 2579 - 3221 23,236
HE /i Disposals/wiiteolf - (49 274] (36] [1.621] - - (50,931)
BRERAME(NE10)  Tronsler fo invesiment propertes
[nofe 16] [7,171] - - - - - (7171]
B Surplus on revaluation 5,245 - - - - - 5,245
ERRE Exchange redlignment (187) (233) (17] (422 - (322) (1,181]
RBRF
TZA=1-H At 31 December 2016 215235 930711 5,601 19,674 6,09 20710 1,198,089
BHAERAE Accumuloted depreciation
and impaiment
EiE) At beginning of period 38687 821,395 3,361 12,851 6,098 13,094 895486
KHEAERG Depreciafion provided during
the period 5914 46,667 540 1,402 - 2,293 56,816
e /Hi Disposals/wiiteolf - (49,125 (34) (1010 - - (50,169)
Efti[ Wiiteback on revaluation (279 - - - - - (279)
EiE Exchange redlignment 39) 209) 8] (314) - (178) (748
RIF-AF
TZA=+-H At 31 December 2016 44283 818728 3,859 12929 6,008 15209 901,106
FEAE: Net carying amount:
S S
+ZA=+-H At 31 December 2016 170952 111,983 1,802 0,745 - 5501 296,983
RZF-AEZA=T-B  A31 Mach 2016 178,601 142,788 052 0,287 - 4717 333405
AEEET L RETEEM T —HR Certain of the Group's land and buildings were pledged to a bank as
TERAEBEERE TRITEE < HF security for certain banking facilities granted fo the Group (note 31).
(PH3E31)
AEEETREBEREBRELEHON Certain of the Group's equipment and machinery are leased fo third
MYE=7  E—IHEFEHARTH parties under operafing leases, further summary details of which are
HAIFE38(a) © included in note 38(a) fo the financial statements.
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W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

REWM= INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
—E—tF “EREF
2017 2016
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
RE /B BREE Carrying amount af beginning of year/period 189,250 172,636
EEAHBANEBWEPHEE15)  Tansfer from an owneroccupied
property [nofe 15) - Yave
N EZE(MES) Fair value changes (note 8) 23,175 23,215
AADERFLEZ Assets included in disposal groups classified
HEARI 2 BE (I 12) as heldforsale nofe 12) (227,814) -
PEE 3, SR B Exchange realignment 15,389 (13,772)
N/ HR 2 BREE Carrying amount at end of year/period - 189,250

RZE—+F+_A=1+—HHEED
XEFHAFGHEZHERRNZEE) R
“E-RETZRA=t+—H FEER
ENEBRUNTEAMNEEDE
ARAEEREEANFE LML F
BkEREERENERBENE
ARBRENFKEBLEXAERY
XhEMRBHEENEERARAR
(TEIRET DFTERER —F—+tF+=
A=t—HEHMHEER227,814,000
B T(Z T — X% :189,250,000%8
L) e ARAEEFFERERMEING
HEMaEAKEME 2 INREE - Bk
EREREMSME - 28 BUME
URREARFEEERRE - ARAER
BEMAR BT R FEMBEREET
HERRGEERR X GELREMGER
HEITR R ©

REMEIRELCEENBETFE=

71 AABBRZE - HRHBENMER
FMIEE 38 ) ©

The Group's investment properties as at 31 December 2017, which
was included in assefs of disposal groups held for sale, and 31
December 2016 consisted of commercial properties in Mainland
China. The directors of the Company have determined that the
investment properties were commercial properties, based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Group's investment
properiies were revalued on 31 December 2017 based on valuations
performed by Vigers Appraisal and Consulting Limited {"Vigers"),
a firm of independent professionally qualified property valuers, at
HK$227,814,000 (2016: HK$189,250,000]. Each year, the
Company's directors decide to appoint which external valuer to be
responsible for the external valuations of the Group's properties.
Selection crieria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Company's
directors have discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions
and valuation results twice a year when the valuation is performed for

interim and annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased fo third parties under operating
leases, further summary defails of which are included in note 38(a to
the financial statements.
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

16. REWE(E) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
NFEZEREE Fair valve hierarchy
TRITAEERENEZ AT ERE The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of the
FMARE - Group's investment properties:

RZZE—tF+ZA=1—-H
ERAUTEBFEBATE
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2017 using
BRI

HKE BATEE EXTUER
(1) BARE WARE
Quoted (562F) (%£38)
pricesin  Significant  Significant
active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs st

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

NUTIER 2 &R Recurring fair value FET FET FET FET
AFERE measurement for: HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EE3ES Commercial properties - - 227,814 227,814

RZEB-—A"E+-HA=1—H
ERA T BB ELFE
Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2016 using
RS
H®E BATERE EATAEER
(E18) WAZE  BARE
Quoted (F2E) (%3E)

prices in Significant Significant

active observable  unobservable
markets inpufs inputs st
(Llevel 1] (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
LATIER Z &5 Recurring fair value FErT FEr FEr FEr
NEEFE measurement for: HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
[EE3/ES Commercial properties - - 189,250 189,250
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RFEEREE (E)

RAEER FIEEF2E BT
BEMATVEFEER BEIEL
BEEAFBEL(HE_T—R"F+_H

=+—HILEE &) -

BEAEIEATESAEEZATE

HEFE S

W=T—~ENA—A2EEE
B ERA A A2 DE
ATES

B3 5%

RZE—R"E+ZHA=1+—H
k=—Z—+F-A—HAZKEHEE
NEEE

fE AR

RZE—+F+-A=+—H
ZREE

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)

Fair valve hierarchy (Cont'd)

31 December 2017 —F—+4+=fA=+—H

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements

between Llevel 1 and Llevel 2 and no transfers into or out of level 3

(period ended 31 December 2016: Nil).

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2016
Transfer from an owner-occupied property
Fair value changes

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount af 31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Fair value changes

Exchange realignment

Carrying amount at 31 December 2017

[GES/ES
Commercial
properties
FET
HK$'000

172,636
7171

/

23,215

(13,772

189,250
23,175
15,389

277,814

F3R 2017
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W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017 ZZ—+F+=-A=+—H

16. REWFE(E) 16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Cont'd)
R FEZRFEE) Fair valve hierarchy (Cont'd)
NTREEMEGEMRGETERE Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key inputs
PRABBIHE fo the valuation of investment properties:
EATTEER
BARE
tER* Significant #E (EF9E)
Valuation techniques unobservable inputs Range (weighted average|
L ZTRF
2017 2016
I E R BEDE BRLEE ARMERAELR -38% to 9% -50% to 9%
Commercial properties Direct comparison Property-specific (-20%) [-27%)
in Mainland China approach adjustment rafe

AEEREMECHADEATHE
ZHERRZEE) 2 R FHEDNERE
BRUBE - 2ZRRMSPALEYE
IREBTRAREREN R
HEfFHBzEE LB BERE
BEHRMET - AV EFEEBRYL
LN EEHLFELESNIAITER
BABUE 2 [EARRIRRIR

The fair value of the Group's investment propetties, included in assets
of disposal groups classified as held for sale, is defermined using the
direct comparison approach by reference fo the recent sales price of
comparable properties in the open market, adjusted for size, location,
floor level and quality of the Group's invesiment properties compared fo
the recent sales. The fair value measurement is positively correlated to
the unobservable input that the higher the adjusiment rate will result in a
higher fair value.

17. —REE NSRS 17. INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE
—EB—+tF —EF-X
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
JE(hEEFE Share of net assets — -
Bk NI Amount due from an associate 399 386
399 386
R OR(E less: Impairment (399) [386)

—EBE QR ZRFREER 28 H
EEEETIR -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interestfree and has no
fixed ferms of repayment.



17.

I EMBARRE - WA

R-ZF—RF+-A=+—0 "t
EREEASENFH—EELHRA
BEMOASKIIHE - ZIZREBERAR
BEFE  RAZRENERMSTE
THERE R_T—+F+-_A=+—
A ZREI AN EAFLEZHER
BlzBEME2) YikHEmEESR
NHEREEXN R BRIEEFTE -

EERA AREZ AT EEEN 5
€ B EZ B A FEMERZE
ER_ZE—+tF+-_A=t+—B2KA
& o

—EBE N RER(E) 17.
& RRZFBIT

FrFE T
Particulars
L of issued
Name shares held
NEREBBR AT EiBK
Turbo Dragon Invesiment limited ~ Ordinary share

. JREHERE 18.

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017

INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd)

Particulars of the associate are as follows:

AEBENG
MR, FrERERZAED
AR &R Percentage
Place of of ownership

interest
attributable
to the Group
Bt _TRF
2017 2016

incorporation/
registration
and business

20 50 50
Hong Kong

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

—ZT—tF
2017
FET
HK$000

Unlisted equity investment, at cost -

—Z—+tF+=-A=+—8

Principal
activity

REER

Investment holding

—E-RF
2016
FET
HK$'000

1,112

As at 31 December 2016, the availableforsale investment represented

the Group's a 6.45% equity inferest in an unlisted equity investment in

the PRC. The investment was measured at cost less impairment because

the investment did not have a quoted market price in an acfive market.

As at 31 December 2017, such investment was included in assets of

disposal groups classified as held for sale [note 12), and was measured

at lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs fo sell.

In the opinion of the directors, the fair value of such investment cannot

be measured reliably and the underlying fair value of the investment was

not less than the carrying value of the investment as at 31 December

2017.
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31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

19. BEFYE 19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
—E—tF —ERE
2017 2016
FET T/ET
HK$000 HK$ 000
F/BNET Balance at beginning of year/period 14,286 1,772,959
AEE/HERE Additions during the year/period 13,109,899 432,348
BRERHAHREEL Transfer fo properties held for
EICIEVAD sale [note 21) (488) (2,074,232)
BEAREF S (M) Interest capitalised (note 7) 105,030 6,556
AADERFLEZ Assefs included in disposal groups
HEHR 2 BE(KF12) classified as heldforsale (note 12) (14,864) -
B 3 AR Exchange realignment 1,066 (123,345)
F /R ETT Balance at end of year/period 13,214,929 14,286
RZB—+F+-/A=+—0  K&EE As at 31 December 2017, the Group's properties under development
RMEABME3,214,9200008 T(=F with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$13,214,929,000 (2016:
—RE R ERTHEETEMR Nil) were pledged fo secure cerfain of the Group's bank loans (nofe
NWEGAEE zE TRITERN T 31).
31) e
20. 78 20. INVENTORIES
—E—tF —TRF
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000
Rt Raw materials 3,372 558
T REAM Spare parts and others 24,997 15,953
28,369 16,511

184 ANNUAL REPORT 2017



HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

21.

22.

FEMHEE 2 21. PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
—E—+tF —TRE
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$°000 HK$ 000
F/H At beginning of year/period 1,883,003 302,596
NE Additions 39,724 —
BRAERTME Transfer from properties under
(BE19) development [nofe 19) 488 2,074,232
F/BRHEZME Properties sold during the year/period (579,109 (496,729
AADERFLEZ Assets included in disposal groups classified
HERR 2 BE(KfFE12) as heldforsale (note 12) (1,460,278) -
bE N AR Exchange realignment 116,172 2,904
FHR At end of year/period — 1,883,003
BEEN 22. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS
ZE—tHF —E-R
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
EPEBENIRIRN Amounts due from customers
for contract works 279,411 205,893
REPEBENIRZFIE Amounts due fo customers for contract works (247,027) [419,304)
32,384 (123,411)
PIEEZ GRKAMBERSFR  Confract costs incurred plus recognised
AEE BRI A C R EE profits less recognised losses to date 11,504,352 12,856,069
B B R EYGEE IR less: Progress billings received and receivable (11,471,968 (12,979,480)
32,384 (123,411)
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —Z—+HF+=-A=+—H

23. BRESERIRERRES 23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES
REBRBEAMITEZESNTEER The Group has established credit policies that follow local industry
R -BTEHRFZIH—REEHA standards. The average normal credit periods offered fo trade customers
SOBAN(EWRERKRIN » HEAELE other than for refention receivables are within 30 days, and are subject
BREELTEMRE - AZR EXTl K fo periodic review by management. In view of the aforementioned and
REE 2 RUE F RN B UUR E & 8 the fact that the Group's trade and retention receivables relate fo a large
AETRRFER  HHEEERMEB number of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
REFRZER - AEBVERZEET of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
REAMERIESEMEER - BIKE enhancements over ifs frade and refention receivable balances. Trade
SEFRERRESHABRE and refention receivables are non-interestbearing.

—EF-tF —ERE

2017 2016

FET AT

HK$000 HK$ 000

JEU B ZER R FEWURE € Trade and refention receivables 638,839 797 907
RE Impairment (29) (29)
638,810 797,878

Included in the trade and retention receivables are amounts due from
related companies of HK$111,454,000 (2016: HK$7,284,000),
which are repayable on credit terms similar fo those offered fo the major
customers of the Group.
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

23. ERESRIRERREEE) 23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Cont'd)
NEZEBEREREFE  BEES An aging analysis of the trade receivables as af the end of the reporting
BRFAREIRRZ R ITAT ¢ period, based on the invoice date and net of provision, is as follows:

—E—+F —TRE
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
FEWE HARK Trade receivables:
Q0 HA Within 90 days 401,869 525,746
91 BZ 180 91 1o 180 days 12,637 102
181 B 360 181 10 360 days 2,154 481
360BM E Over 360 days 333 10,392
416,993 536,721
EWRE S Retention receivables 221,817 261,157
638,810 /97,878
R-_ZE—+E+-_A=+—HEHE Refention receivables, amounting to HK$178,063,000 as at 31
£178,063,0008 m(Z & — R~ &F: December 2017 (2016: HK$200,251,000), are expected fo be
200,251,000 7T) 2 FE AR E € T8 HR recovered within twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
BRRERRE T ZEAAKE -
EREZRFBER B EFWT The movements in provision for individual impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:
—E—+F ZE—RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$000
&/ HR¥)) At beginning of year/period 29 391
ERERREEE () Impairment losses recognised (note 8) - 25
A E 2z 2 #sETIR Amount written off as uncollectible - (387)
/B At end of year/period 29 29
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23.

W E 5 R R BN RE ()

AALEBE SRR RERER
29,0007 JT(=F — X F : 29,0008
7U) R E R AR E B R MR B
RIBRME 2 /29,0008 T(ZE— R
1 69,000/87T) © ERIEREREKE
FERFERNM BN ZFAR - B
MM ZSE P 2R T2 rilReE -

{ERIHILFG IR TIREZ BKE S
R R ERRE S ZREDITIT

23. TRADE AND RETENTION RECEIVABLES (Contd)

Included in the above provision for impairment of frade receivables
of HK$29,000 (2016: HK$29,000) is a provision for individually
impaired trade receivables with a gross carrying amount before
provision of HK$29,000 (2016: HK$69,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relafe to customers that were in financial
difficulties and the receivables from these customers are not expected fo
be fully recoverable.

The aging analysis of the frade and refention receivables that are not
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

—E—+5F —ERF

2017 2016

FET THET

HK$000 HK$'000

RE BT ERE Neither past due nor impaired 604,715 691,725
ERH1IAE0H 1 to 90 days past due 19,816 95,178
BRI BE2/70R 91 to 270 days past due 13,955 439
EiRHiR 270 H More than 270 days past due 324 10,496
638,810 797,838

SEBHTERNE R IREAEY
BIMBNELNTREFAR -8
HEEIRE < KGR E A8 EAK
BAEERHXHCHENBIEFPEM -
KEBELR  ARREEAR @R
FEEEYEEREH ALFNHE AR
2ERE - S EN B S AL
BERE - BUWE SRR ERRE S
ZIREEEANFERS -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate fo a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default. Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good frack record with
the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary in respect
of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are sfill considered fully recoverable. The
carrying amounts of the frade and refention receivables approximate fo
their fair values.
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

—E—tF —TRE
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
WM - e Deposits for acquisition of items of property,

REEB 272 plant and equipment 41 1,094
BNFIERT S Prepayments and deposits 23,283 53,137
Hoh R IE Other receivables 22,230 23,570
wRE less: Impairment (5,207) (3,888)

40,347 74,813
R BERERBEEL less: Prepayments, deposits and other
BNFIE AT receivables classified
N B Ath FE R IR as non-current assefs (899) (4,143)
39,448 70,670

Hit KRR ER B2 EBMT -

The movements in provision for impairment of other receivables are as

follows:

—E—tF —TRE
2017 2016
FET TET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
F /81 At beginning of year/period 3,888 4,215
BHAREERE(MES) Impairment losses recognised (nofe 8) 1,029 —
FEBERER (FIFE8) Impairment losses written back (note 8) - (50)

AADBRFHE ZHEAS Assets included in disposal groups
ZEE classified as heldforsale (28) -
EE 5% 8% Exchange realignment 318 (277)
F/HR At end of year/period 5,207 3,888

R-ZZE—+E+-_A=+—RH BE
2HRAEZ 5,207,000 T (T -~
% : 3,888,000/ 7T ) £ b FE W K18
Oh - BIEEIEBESORE - mETA
biiEeh SRR E ST R AE AL
B2 FEUGRIB A/ ©

As at 31 December 2017, except for other receivables of
HK$5,207,000 (2016: HK$3,888,000] which were fully impaired,

none of the above assets was either past due or impaired and the

financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for

which there was no recent history of default.
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25. PTESRIA

26.

RXE

AEECFTU AR EREH  NE
BHEXRER - ZXXE K2 IS
EEEH AR - WRAFEF AR -
FERITETAZ A FRHEZS 2B
33,057,000 A TL(HE_T—RF+=
A=+—HIEERE : &% 27,662,000
BIL) IRAFRERBERNG - &
TeMTAZRAEEEAFERS -
LT EEBTAMPRR 58—
FERFBIRUBEOESL 2 & BHE
BT - IXNEBRHIRAFERRT
FERR -

BAFESABZZEREE

FETREES BAVE
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25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

26.

“E-tFE  CTAE

2017 2016

FET FIET

HK$000 HK$ 000

Cross currency swap - 39,721

The Group enfered info a cross currency swap to manage its exchange
rafe exposures. This cross currency swap was not designated for
hedging purpose and was measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Changes in the fair value, net, of the non-hedging derivative amounting
to a loss of HK$33,057,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
gain of HK$27,662,000) were charged fo the consolidated statement
of profit or loss during the year. The carrying amount of the financial
instrument was the same as its fair value. The above transaction
involving a derivative financial instrument was conducted with a
creditworthy financial insfituion with no recent history of default. The
cross currency swap was early unwound during the year.

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS

—E—+tF ZE-RF

2017 2016

FEx FET

HK$000 HK$ 000

Unlisted investment fund, at fair value 738,865 —




26. BAVEFABBRZEHERE

(%)

REE-Z—tF+-A=1t—HILF
B AEEBE-BEFLTREES
YRE-FEHELE  AEKER
11,163,000 B TX St AREE 255 A
BERK ° dtHh - REBEFAK L HKICIM
Fund I, LP.((E IR EERKE A
ROR(BEER DT IEETRE
NeBHRERABHZE  LREE
R4 ETA=T-HLEFER
BAEESHREZ21207% 28R
728,000,000 - E2 I FERER
BE R EZERYE  ARER
RHEERREARE CRIBRATFE
BEEEEWFE - FURARERER
BRAHERI ARG EREE -

HeIHE-T—+F+-A=+—H
ZRVETIZZFERARAEETT
ZIEERETTEE - WRFEETEHE
5738,8650008 7T FiEAFEK
# 510,860,000 T 5t AKEE 2

meBRk -

EERRLMF ETRERS 2L
TERBERACEEE - EBATE
WEROFREHRMBMRME L6 -

26.
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31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS (Cont'd)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group has purchased
an unlisted investment fund and disposed of it in the same year with
a gain of HK$11,163,000 resulted and credited to the consolidated
statement of profit and loss during the year. In addition, the Group
entered info an amended and restated exempted limited partnership
agreement with Hisea Infernational Co., lid ("Hisea”) in relation to the
formation of HKICIM Fund II, L.P. {"Fund 1"} and subscribed 12.07%
of the committed fund size amounting to HK$728,000,000 during the
year ended 31 December 2017. Fund Il primarily invests in properties
under development on a parcel of land located in Hong Kong and was
designated by the Group as financial assefs at fair value through profit
or loss because the performance of which was managed and evaluated
by management on a fair value basis in accordance with the Group's
strafegy.

The fair value of Fund Il as af 31 December 2017 was estimated
with reference to a valuation performed by Vigers by using the income
approach, adjusted by net asset method at HK$738,865,000 and a
fair value gain of HK$10,860,000 was resulted and credited fo the

consolidated statement of profit and loss during the year.

The directors believe that the esfimated fair value of the above unlisted
investment fund is reasonable and appropriate as atf the end of the
reporting period. Details of the fair value disclosure are sef out in nofe
46 1o the financial statements.
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27. BERBITHEFRSIBFRITE 27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK

= BALANCES
Hiat —E—+tF —EF-R
Notes 2017 2016
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
EHER - Time deposifs:
— B A EEIF R — other time deposits (a) 250,000 1,246,696
— BT — structured deposits (b) - 280,790
EHE AR Total ime deposits 250,000 1,527,486
Be RIBITHES Cash and bank balances
—JEEHHET - Non-pledged balances 2,077,460 330,962
—BEHEE - Pledged balances 41,414 -
(a) 2,118,874 330,962
EHERRRE R Total time deposits and cash and
RITREFB%E bank balances 2,368,874 1,858,448
R BB A RE S less: bank balances pledged for
2T performance bonds 40(a) (41,414) —
RelZFREEER Cash and cash equivalents 2,327,460 1,858,448
AT EHEHE - Denominated in:
AR Renminbi ["RMB") 15,057 546,132
BT HK$ 1,700,262 1,311,373
ET United States dollars ("US$") 611,764 195
BT Macao patacas (“MOP’) 309 493
HiEr Other currencies 68 255
2,327,460 1,858,448
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27. BERBITEFRCEMRITE
(%)

ARBAAEmABRAEMER A
- AR B it 2 SNEE IR 5D [ 45
& EELNEEERTE  AREEAE
BBEREETINERB 2 RIT BA
RERBRAMLER -

sz -

(a)

(b]

BOEFREARTEINERGFEZ
FERERRAL - EMEFAET
RZEFER - M F7RESEAZ
T—R"E NF/REIEATE
REALE A REFRME » L
BARERFRNERERAE - R
TREERERENIBLEROESL
ZIEBEEZRIT

ERUFRAREGEFEIBER ZE
R - REERAYIER - EEITFER
BEBETRZGFHER - N FI0KE
PR - RZE—RFTZA=+—
B #8eERDEREEN=EA
% B8 2 730 34,237, 0008 7T » 4
BUTHRERERETEE T HZ
EREHMEE - AREEEBER
HERARRARE B

27.

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W B it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED BANK
BALANCES (Contd)

RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Setilement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through authorised banks to conduct foreign exchange
business.

Nofes:

[a)  Cash at banks eams inferest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between 7 days
fo 3 months [2016: 7 days to 3 months) depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn inferest at the respective
fime deposit rates. The bank balances and deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

(b)  The structured deposits were time deposits with fixed maturity dates
and were stated at amortised cost. The deposits were made for varying
periods of between 30 days to 92 days. As at 31 December 2016,
included in the balance were deposits of HK$34,237,000 of which
the original maturity was more than three months when acquired. The
interest rafes on the structured deposits fluctuated based on changes in
the currency exchange rate between US$ and HK$. The Group uses
structured deposits primarily to enhance the refurn on investment.
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28.

29.

EHESER  BHRELRE
gE e

NBRZEHE  BHEZERINEEH
RO -

28. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

An aging analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

—E—tHF SN
2017 2016
FHET BT
HK$'000 HK$000

ENESEN Trade payables:
Q0 B Within Q0 days 243,992 334,403
Q1HZ180H 91 1o 180 days 359 33
180BM £ Over 180 days 204 347
244,555 334,783
N RE R Retention payables 75,197 157,899
FEETHIR Accruals 261,716 484,984
581,468 Q77,666

BNEZEANENREEH /RS -
—REFHASNTAH -

HttE I =E - eREI =R AR

FRIE

R-—ZE—+E+-_A=+—08" &
WREREWKBBEERR ZHE
29,057,000 (=5 —RF &) -

RZE—AR"F+ZA=+—0" Hft
ENHE  cWF 2 RBRRRERRE
BPNBRFAWE(FE)HR T SRBER
B FE TR (B 104,598,000 7 7 (Bt
43) - ZREBRAFERE -

Hi AR B LR A E)S
REE - VTOEFHA—EA -
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29.

The trade and refention payables are non-inferestbearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.

OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND RECEIPTS
IN'ADVANCE

As at 31 December 2017, included in receipts in advance are amounts

received from related companies of HK$29,057,000 (2016: Nil).

As at 31 December 2016, included in other payables, deposits
received and receipt in advance was a consideration payable of
HK$104,598,000 related to the acquisition of the remaining 5% equity
interest in TFHKL [note 43). The balance is fully seftled in current year.

Other payables, excluding the abovementioned consideration payable,
are non-interestbearing and have an average term of one month.
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31.

[S1E e

RZZE—RE+ZA=+—H BWT
THERERAHAREHENREES
HREBPRBRZA® - AREMFA

ZHEEEYRRE

MERITEE

v
BITER

RER:
BITER

RITERER

Unsecured:
Bank loans

Secured:
Bank loans

Instalment loans

Total bank borrowings

30.
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DEPOSITS RECEIVED

As at 31 December 2016, deposits received represented the down
paymenfs received from customers upon signing the sale confracts of
properties held for sale of the Group. Such amounts held by the Group
were nonrinterestbearing.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS

“E-tF “ENF
2017 2016

BRFI= ERFE

Effective Effective
inferest rafe HiR FAET  interest rate HR FET
(% Maturity — HK$000 % Mty  HKSO00
- - - 3.2-39 2017-2018 396,543
25-28 2018 5,805,434 - - -
2.5 2018-2031 74,583 2.3 2017-2031 78,667
5,880,017 78,667
5,880,017 475210

F3R 2017

195



Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017 ZZ—+F+=-A=+—H

31. MERITEE(E) 31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)
S —T-RF
2017 2016
FET AT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
BIETHIEE AT Analysed into:
AR THHEANER Bank borrowings repayable:
ZHRITEE
R—ERSIREKE Within one year or on demand 5,809,375 127,777
EF In the second year 4,040 276,812
E=FEFRF
(BEEEMT) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 12,739 12,786
HBEhF Beyond five years 53,863 57,835
5,880,017 475,210
ER—FANEE  DER Porfion due within one year, classified as
mBABEIHD current liabilities (5,809,375) (127,777)
REIEE D long ferm portion 70,642 347,433

RZB—+F+-_A=1+—H ' K&EE As at 31 December 2017, the Group's secured bank borrowings were
ZEIEARTEE Jhm N E B EEA secured by:

o HASBEREEI6],283000%8 [a)  mortgages over certain of land and buildings of the Group
TL(ZZE—7REF : 169,061,000% with a carrying amount of HK$161,283,000 (2016:
T AT T REF 2 =B (s HK$169,061,000) (note 15);

15):

bl % X & k @ & E (b]  mortgages over cerfain of properties under development
]

3,214,929,000& 7T(Z T — X
F R ZETERPYFEZ2IRE
9

(BIzE19) :

) HAEBEETHBRARRGZHE [c)  charges over shares of certain subsidiaries of the Company; and
ik

d) HAREBERTEES 7130008 (d)  floating charges over bank balances of the Group amounting to

=F A B 2B
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HK$5,713,000 (2016: Nil).

of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$13,214,929,000 (2016: Nil] (note 19);
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32.

M ESRITREE(E)

pesh  AREEHAE THB ARG
ZIEERERERMEIEL00) - K=
T-R"Ft-A=1t—R BELE(EB
HEERAR(HEZDIRARRET
B A RIS R 2 BaabCR) T S H B
ARIRGZRITRERBEALER -

AKBRARITEEDR TN KRG
B RITEEZREERE QA FEME

4
o

+

AERE 2 SRITEFABTTATE
BERRE

RER - Silverbell Asia Limited (B A& A
AZEEMBAR)REER =T —+t
£ A+ B K7z 1,000,000,000
ETHHERAEBRTLASLE
305,000,000 L2 BEERER(E
EREE]) -

BREREBNEEFERERTS
FERE—R HHEA-T-TFL
AZ+RA - BEREERADFEMH
ER o

&40 B % 17 210,849,000 T
& BEREBNOMEIAFENR
294,151,000/&7T °

BITRERER

BITHX

BITR S

R-F—tF+-A=t—H
ZIREE

AEREENERFIERRB.37%
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS (Contd)

In addition, the Company has executed guarantees in respect of
borrowing facilities granted fo certain of its subsidiaries (note 40[al).
As at 31 December 2016, Mr. Fung, who was a then beneficial
shareholder of cerfain subsidiaries of the Company through Fortunate
Pool Limited |"Fortunate Pool”), also provided personal guarantees in
respect of borrowing facilities granted fo these subsidiaries.

Al of the bank borrowings of the Group bear interest at floating interest
rates. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their
fair values.

The Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

GUARANTEED NOTES

During the year, Silverbell Asia limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, issued guaranfeed notes with an aggregate principal
amount of HK$305,000,000 (the “Guaranteed Notes") under a
US$1,000,000,000 medium term note programme established by
Silverbell Asia Limited on 7 April 2017.

The Guaranteed Notes bear a fixed inferest rate at 7% per annum
payable semi-annually in arrears and will be matured on 26 July 2020.
The Guaranteed Notes are guaranteed by the Company.

The net proceeds of the Guaranteed Notes, after deducting
the issue expenses of HK$10,849,000, were approximately
HK$294,151,000.

FET

HK$000

Issue of Guaranteed Notes 305,000

Issue expenses (10,849)

Amortisation of issue expenses 1,192
Carrying amount at

31 December 2017 295,343

The effective interest rate of the Guaranteed Notes is 8.37% per annum.
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33. IEERIE 33. DEFERRED TAX
WAEE/HHA - EERARERE The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the year/
EZEBIT period are as follows:
BEHERE Deferred tax liabilities
HEZHE
ApEEL
e =R
BHEH Temporary
Eff wERD difference
REME  Allowance arising from
Revaluation in excess B disposal groups
of investment ofrelofed ~ Withholding  classified as @t
properties  depreciation faxes  held for sale Total

TET TET TET TET TET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

RZE—~ENA—H AT April 2016 (27,085 (7,960 (105,259 - [140,304)
HRRNERRFT A/ (1B)Z  Deferred fox credited/(charged)
ERFAREE1) fo the sfotement of profit or
loss during the period
(note 11 6,402 1,596 16,141 - 11,335
HNNEEBLRETRC  Defered fox charged fo the
B asset revaluation reserve
during the period (1,395] - - - (1,395)
FREMHBAREL . Wihholding fox paid on
BN 2 Bk repatation of earnings from
subsidiaries in
Minland China - - 14,209 - 14,209
B A% Exchange realignment 2,249 - 5973 - 8,222
WZZE-~F+=A=1T—H A 31 December 2016 ond
kZE—tF-A-H 1 Jonuary 2017 (32,633 6,364) 68,936 - (107,933
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)

Deferred tax liabilities (Cont'd

At 31 December 2016 and

1 January 2017

Deferred fax credited,/(chorged)|
fo the sfotement of profit or

loss during the year [nofe 11]

Withholding tax paid on

repatriation of eamings from

subsidiries in

Mainland Ching

Liobilities included in disposal

groups classified as held

for sale [note 12)
Exchange realignment

At 31 December 2017

HEZHE

AREEZ

e TER

HitEE Temporary

Eff wEHD difference

REME  Allowance arising from

Revaluation in excess BB disposal groups
of investment of related ~ Withholding  classified as ac
properties  depreciation faxes  held for sale Total
TET &L TET TET TET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
(32,633 (6,364) 68,936) - (107,933)
15,799 1825 37083 (8809  [45699)
- - 24,156 - 24,156
41,129 - - - 41,129
12,698) - 3.733) - 16,431)
S 0539 (11430 (78809 (94778
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33.

EREFLIE (42) 33. DEFERRED TAX (Contd)
EAFIEEE Deferred tax assets
e
THIBER fichik =12
BE BERD
Provision  Depreciation
for land  in excess of
appreciation related s
tax allowance Total
FET FET FET
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
RZE—RFMA—A At 1 April 2016 49,133 — 49,133
HINREREREA Deferred fax credited fo the statement of
ZIRERIE(MEETT) profit or loss during the period [nofe 11 7,150 — 7.150
b 5 Exchange realignment (3,827) — (3,827)

RZEBE—RFT+_A=+—H At 31 December 2016 and

kZZE—tF—-H—H 1 January 2017 52,456 — 52,456
FRMBERTA(3B)  Deferred tax credited/(charged)

ZIEERIEPAEETT) o the statement of profit or

loss during the year note 11) (53,350) 1,128 (52,222)

FADERFEHEZHE Assets included in disposal groups

MRl BEE12) classified as held for sale (note 12) (960) - [ 960)
P 30 % Exchange realignment 1,854 - 1,854
RZE—+tF+=HA=+—H At 31 December 2017 - 1,128 1,128

AEBRNBRBELEZREEBER
311,696,000/ (= & — X F:
286,058,00087T) » Al MEERHIE
HIRBBRZ ARIZRRERTEN
RPELERZMBRRAIMEE 2 ZF
BRATEERA/ELHEEE - B
FERRBUE A B P E B R B RREN

AJRE ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$311,696,000
(2016: HK$286,058,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for
some time and it is not considered probable that faxable profits will be
available against which the fax losses can be uilised.



33. EEBIA(E)

RipPECRAETETERRER
%] RPBER AN E R EAE
SIMREES IR IS A 10%T8M
B ZBERER-—TTN\F-—A—HiE
ERLERN —ETLF+-A=1—
AZ&EELZEM - T ElRiEEIN
REEMRAEEBIIAREARE - 8l
AIREEABIE 2 BB E » Fift - &
S BZARLE R P B A AR AL 2 P B 1 )
RE—ETN\F-A-HARELZEF
ik 2 BB BATRIM -

ARANRN FEBR 2 BEL EERA
BRER -
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DEFERRED TAX (Cont'd)

Pursuant fo the Corporate Income Tax [“CIT") Law, a 10% withholding
fax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to eamings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding fax rate may be applied if there
is a fax freaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. The Group s therefore liable for withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by ifs subsidiaries established in Mainland China

in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment of
dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.
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34. A& 34. SHARE CAPITAL
R 17 Shares
—E-iF “TREF
2017 2016
FiET FIET
HK$000 HK$ 000
EE Authorised:
6,000,000,000 6,000,000,000
(ZF—RF: (2016: 2,000,000,000)
2,000,000,000 %) & ordinary shares
0. 10572 BBk of HK$0.10 each 600,000 200,000
EEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
3,402,497 709 I 3,402,497,709
(ZZ—R%F: (2016: 1,134,165,903)
1,134,165,903 /%) ordinary shares
BREBEOC10BT LK of HK$0.10 each 340,249 113,416
BEARAR-_Z—LFHEATN Pursuant fo an ordinary resolution passed at the special general meefing
ERBREEIAE LRBMHERR of the Company on 18 May 2017, the authorised share capital of
FE KNRABRETERAKEBIEM the Company was increased from HK$200,000,000 divided info
4,000,000,000 ik E B & A 0. 108 T 2,000,000,000 of HK$0.10 each to HK$600,000,000 divided into
BINE AR - B 200,000,000 T 6,000,000,000 of HK$0.10 each by creation of 4,000,000,000
(% £2,000,000,000 % m E & 1% 0.10 additional ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each, ranking pari passu in all
BTTH & BAR AR )3 1= 600,000,000 respects with the existing shares of the Company.

7 7T(% /6,000,000,000% & & &
010 TRERRR) - AR HEER

ARRBBRHFHRFER -

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



34. BA(#E)

R (&)

ARBRAZ ZSHEMT -

R-F-"FEOA-A
&iThin
Ri%TRX

N1 A 2016
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses

At 31 December 2016 and

1 Jonuary 2017
Issue of shares
Share issue expenses

At 31 December 2017

(o)

ERABBETRLO0E TET
259,500,000 it - HEKBEL
#(H R B 2 A1) 731,058,760,000
AT °

RZZE—+FR A ARRCES
BE—BRBROBZEMBRERKN 2
HEPDGRERKRMH408E T2
R BB % KRS #2,208,331,806
I EE & R0.10748 T & i ik i 15
([ ]) - RIBEARARERER
76,931,170,0005% T 2 & %B(EN
RAR P ES QR REMSRR M E
WEEREBE) % RINKRRGOE
TRAY “BEAESREFENS
2,323,624,000 7T ©

BRE

ARFBRER & 2 BN M HER
PaE35
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SHARE CAPITAL (Contd)

Shares (Contd)

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as follows:

Nofes:

(a)

(b)

BT

g 4= RivEER
i3 Number of B&  Share premium a5t
Notes shares inissue  Share capifal account Tofal
TEL TAL AL
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HS000
874,605,903 87,466 - 87466
lo 259,500,000 25,950 1,032,810 1,058,760
- - (660] (660
1,134,165,903 113416 1,032,150 1,145,566
b 2,268,331,806 226,833 9,027,961 9,254,794
- - (4174) (4,174)
3,402,497,709 340249 10,055937 10,396,186

259,500,000 shares were issued for cash at a subscription price of
HK$4.08 per share for a fofal cash consideration, before expenses, of

HK$1,058,760,000.

In June 2017, the Company completed the rights issue of
2,268,331,806 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each on the basis
of two rights shares for every one share held of the Company af a
subscription price of HK$4.08 per rights share (the "Rights Issue”). The
nef proceeds before share issue expenses from the Rights Issue was
approximately HK$2,323,624,000, after seffing off an amount of
HK$6,931,170,000 (being the subscription price receivable for rights
shares subscribed by the Company's immediate holding company)
against the amount owed by the Company fo the immediate holding
company.

Share Options

Details of the Company's share option scheme are included in note 35

to the financial statements.
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BB IR T2

RZZ—Z—FNANR  KAREH—
TR EI([BRERTE ) mAaR
SERNEEELHERZAER2EE
R AR R 5 -

B ﬁﬁ)&éﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁé*ﬁﬂﬁﬁZﬁﬂiﬁ
ERERES=HE  ARTERBAR
AEAERED#TRNZ ] Oé il
ERBERLET 2R DBAE -

ARRZBIAEEIBRIT -
B#Y

Purpose
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Hong Kong International Construction Investment Management Group Co., Limited

W% W # W 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 8 August 2012

"Share Option Scheme'| for the purpose of providing incentives and

, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the

rewards to eligible participants who contribute fo the success of the
Group's operations.

The maximum number of unexercised share opfions currently permitted
fo be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue af any fime. No
share option has been granted under the Share Option Scheme during
the period.

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company is as follows:

FEER(EEREURLBRENRDEER 2RI RS UK
E¥T$¢.&/ﬁ$$lﬁﬁﬁzg AIFFA MR AR 2 EME
BZEY ZRMERFERIARZAERS /\% HEE AR
//\%i%éﬁﬁ EANEBAREE 2 BR  UREERRRRARFMRE
ZEBNERER  ANERER2EENDZEELEHRERM
ERZAR 7%%%}32%  BEARBEGURFHEREURAEER
BEEBNMBERRKRABEZSERES -
To enable the board of directors (the “Board”] to grant options to
reward eligible participants who, in the sole and absolute opinion of the
Board, would contribute or benefit or had contributed or benefited to the
business, development and growth (and any other aspect whatsoever)
of the Group and/or any of the entities in which any member of the
Group holds any equity interest, and fo provide incentives fo eligible
participants fo perform their best in achieving the goals of the Group
in the interests and benefits of the Company and the shareholders of
the Company as a whole, while at the same time allowing the eligible
participants to share the fruits of the Company’s business achieved
through their effort and confribution, as well as to enable the Group fo
recruit high quality employees who are valuable fo the management
and long ferm business and financial goals and success of the Group.



35.

BRERTEI(E)

ARBZERAEBBENT : (&)

ABERSEE
Eligible participants

AT EITZ ERRER NN FRERAS
HEBTRAZAN

Total number of ordinary shares available for
issue and the percentage of the issued share
capifal that it represents as at the date of the
annual report
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company is as follows:

(Contd]

BR2EBREFEIZAL ARSI MNBARSESERE
ZERMEBAERBES  TRAR  SEABEAEF(REHNT ¥*
BTRBUIFNTER)AEZRERERRALEABHARA R o
ERMERR R/ AR EE¥5  BRIER(REMEMD
HE)ABR AR AEBEAABE  HBA - B KEBA
HERSREB(PINER  WELES - MRERE) TP -2
HE - FRBRERA LR

A person who is entitled fo participate in the Share Option Scheme,
being any fulltime or parttime employees, executives, officers or
directors [including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive directors| of the Company or any of the subsidiaries or any of
the interesfed entities and any contractors, advisors, consultants, agents,
suppliers or providers (of, for example, goods, plants and machineries,
materials or services|, customers, distributors, business ally or joint
venture partners of the Group who, in the sole and absolute opinion of
the Board, will contribute or benefit or have contributed or benefited
fo the business, development and growth [and any other aspect
whatsoever) of the Company and/or any of the subsidiaries and/or
any of the interested entities.

87,206,590 RE @R R EBEITIRAZ 10% GHEEERRARRIR
RERAREEH-_T——F\A/\B2872,665903 K &E/TK
7)) e

87,266,590 ordinary shares and 10% of the issued share capital,
on the basis of 872,665,903 shares in issue as at the date of the
Company's special general meeting on 8 August 2012.
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5. BRERTE(E)

ARBZEREBMENT : (&)

BE2EEZ RS
Maximum entiflement of each participant

RIBEIRE LV EREES HR
Period within which the securities must be
faken up under an opfion

PTEERT B /RFEA BB <« SRR HIR
Minimum period for which an optfion must be
held before it can be exercised

P AN T 5RIE
Amount payable on acceptance
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35. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company is as follows:

(Contd)
NMERBBIMER 1218 A HRARRRIEBITRA 2 1% -

Shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any
12-month period.

KEhEERRNTERERNBEEE SN I ZARA - 1
Pt 2 2180 B MS BN X L AR AR S B RRET T (10)F R
To be defermined by the Board on a casefocase basis af its absolute
discrefion and nofified fo the grantee thereof, provided that the expiry
date of the said period shall not be later than ten (10) years from the
date of grant of the option concerned.

HHESRBBET -

To be determined at the discretion of the Board.

/%\ﬁ o
Nil.



35. BRHERTEI(E)

ARBZERAEBBENT : (&)

BETEEIEE

Basis for determining the exercise price
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company is as follows:

(Contd]
MEMETEREmNS

In respect of any particular option:

RITEBRERENAAR 2 ERBRNER  AEZREEEER
BB 2 BMERREBRER IRTBEL2EBERE LRTE -
ETEEMIRATEER RS

the price per share payable to the Company on the exercise of the
option as may be decided upon and prescribed by the Board on a
casetocase basis, bearing in mind the purpose of the Share Option
Scheme, in its absolute discretion upon the grant of the option,
provided that such exercise price shall not be less than the highest of the

following:

() BtpzmEfE :

the nominal value of a share;

b BERERLAHEREERE)NBRMZERARERARZK
U E &
the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheet on the date of grant of the option, which
must be a business day; and

€ EXBRERLBHUNLO)ELXENBIMAZEARER
P2 B in PRI (E & ok
the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotations sheets for the five (5) business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option, or

BRBBIE( L (o) Z () Prit) 2 1T EER) - AThES/HRE
BRETETEB(ET R RN EAEABRETEIRTZHBE
HEAREITEE 2SRRI HE -

where applicable, the exercise price for the option concerned (referred
fo [a) to [c) above) as may be adjusted by the Board from time to
time pursuant fo the rules of the Share Option Scheme concering
adjusiments of, inter alia, the exercise price upon the occurrence of any
relevant event as defined in the Share Option Scheme.
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35.

36.

BRERTEIE)

ARBZEREBMENT : (&)

ATEIZ R T

The remaining life of the scheme

RREG LREZHER -
REAEEREERHEZTHBHRRE

T8 ~ BIHIRRE TR TIER
Bt -

G

RAFERBERRASEREEEL
HEPRP BRI GARREPRE
5

REFINEELEZBRED RG]
AEEETEEM 2 MB LR B
FEBEERTERE AT M -
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35.

36.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)

A summary of the Share Option Scheme of the Company is as follows:

(Contd)

BRETEIE T ——F \A/\HE T 10O)FBRINAF LN =
T _F\ALHARRRZ EXEREREEm
The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period of ten (10)
years commencing from 8 August 2012 and expiring af the close of
business hours of the Company on 7 August 2022.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or o vote
at shareholders” meetings.

During the year and up to the date of approval of these financial
statements, no share option under the Share Option Scheme was
granted, exercised, expired or lapsed and there was no outstanding
share option under the Share Option Scheme.

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for
the current year and prior period are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

Pursuant fo the relevant laws and regulations for Sinoforeign joint
venture enferprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's subsidiaries
which are registered in the PRC has been fransferred fo statutory reserves
which are resfricted as to use.



37.

RERERBRMEE

HBETEELCEEEZE

R-F—+F—HA—H

REBERD B
BRI
BAEHE
NERRERTRE

NRERREREREZRY

EHBRFHEZ
HERRNEZER
ZBEI&E

SNETRED

RZE—+tF+-A=+—H
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37. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

FLOWS

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

At 1 January 2017

Changes from financing activities

Interest expenses

Interest capifalised

Changes classified as operating
cash flows

Changes classified as invesfing cash flows

liabilities directly associated with
the disposal groups classified
as held for sale

Foreign exchange movement

At 31 December 2017

FEfF
EZRR
R REft
REER LigsN
FEst A RITEE
Trade and Interest-
refention bearing BEREE
payables bank  Guaranteed
and accruals  borrowings notes
THET FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$°000
977,666 475,210 -
(106,992) 5,404,130 294,151
16,621 677 1,192
105,030 — -
(129,287) — -
(1,248) - -
(280,400) — -
78 — -
581,468 5,880,017 295,343
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38.

REBENRZH

(a)

TERHEA

REBERBELEHEOZH - UHE
WERNF—EZLTRERH  H
MEETHES (15 RARE
WE(MEE16) - AR —RIN
ERBPREPXMERTE R
RERERDRAERFELEER

%Eko

RBEHR  AEEREAEE
FREPFILZ A HHELEHE
KR A T & 8 2 ROR SRR R
THRENT

38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a)  As lessor

The Group leases certain of its machinery (note 15) and
its investment properties [note 16) under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
fo seventy-five months. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenanfs and customers to pay security deposifs and
provide for periodic rental adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases with its tenants and customers falling due as follows:

—E—+&E —TRF

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$°000 HK$ 000

—FR Within one year 15,389 14,362
FEEREF In the second o fifth years,

(BEEEMT) inclusive 20,683 23,008

36,072 37,370

ANNUAL REPORT 2017




HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W B it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

. REHENRHE) 38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (Cont'd)
(b) 1ERFHEA (b) As lessee
REBRBRBELEMROLH J/XTE The Group leases certain of ifs office properties, warehouses,
RNEBNT—E2=1+REA staff quarters and certain machinery under operating lease
Tﬁ%$ﬁ#ﬂﬁ¢@¥ g5E - I arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
BERATHS o thirty-six months.
RBEHR - AEBREAIH At the end of the reporting period, the Group had tofal future
HEEHON A T FHZ KKK minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
ERNNFTEENT falling due as follows:
— —TRE
2017 2016
FET FAET
HK$'000 HK$ 000
—FR Within one year 28,491 25,509
“EFERF In the second o fifth years,
(BEEEMT) inclusive 14,073 28,643
42,564 54152
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39. AEiE 39. COMMITMENTS
BR | SCPHEE 38(b) FF it 2 48 & IR A AR In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 38(b)
oh - RMEK - AEEER THIER above, the Group had the following capital commitments af the end of
AR the reporting period:
—E—tF —E-X
2017 2016
FHET BT
HK$'000 HK$ 000
W - RN Property, plant and equipment:
—2RIA) - BRIERE ~ confracted, but not provided for 23,041 151
HERPYELFELEDE Construction works relating to properties under
ZEEIRR development and propetties held for sale:
—BRI4 - BRIEEE — contracted, but not provided for 68,022 273
R—EREEGHE - Capital confributions to an investment fund
— B R4 - BRIERE — contracted, but not provided for 633,160 —
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40. AEE

[a)

(bl

RBEEE - RRBBREAMR
B AR EMT -

HENREEFME AT
fE < JEIR

RZE—tF+ZA=+—
H 36,980,000/ T 2 B %
REENHCEBRITER
41,414,000 (ZF—RF
)R (I 27) -

RZE—+F+=-A=+—8H"
AEERBBEEAESEEF
DB HRREBEARAR—
R BARIMAZE s ETUER
BEFEHNRBREREE
R ZEERZAREEREBE
FA21,908,0008 (= —<
& 142,196,000 7T) °

REBMERARFTLABRIE
ESREE 2R HERESE
AR -

ZERERZAFEIAEKR - M
EZRAMBRAT - HEYME
Z AR FEA R HEERERER
HIRBA S HREBER B FE R
T UM SRR Y Bl b
FERIELEE -
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

bonds in relation fo subsidiaries

(bl

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the financial statements were as follows:

Guarantees in respect of performance

—E—tE —T—REF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$ 000
255,782 343,537

As at 31 December 2017, performance bonds of
HK$36,980,000 were also supported by pledged bank
balances of HK$4 1,414,000 (2016: Nil) (note 27).

As at 31 December 2017, the Group provided guarantees in
respect of mortgage facilities granted by Shenyang Housing
Fund Management Center relating to the morigage loans
arranged for purchases of certain properties developed by a
subsidiary of the Company and the outstanding morigage loans
under these guarantees amounted to HK$21,908,000 (2016:
HK$42,196,000).

The Group's guarantee period sfarts from the dates of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon issuance of the relevant
ownership certificates.

The fair value of the guarantees is not significant and the directors
consider that in case of default in payments, the net realisable
value of the related properties can cover the repayment of the
outstanding mortgage principal fogether with the accrued interest
and penalty and therefore no provision has been made for these
guarantees in the financial statements.
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42.

—ET—+F+ZA=1+—H
EEEW

BRATRSERTERNENRES
CEil ﬁ?Z# |E/\)DJ|JﬁEAE7J-iR¥&2%MT?
27} 31

syl

FEALRZ

BRIEBENZEMBERREMMTTI - K
SERPRNEREEA LI MRS

o

) EEETEA £ 2K EEE T

REERBEMRERLEENF
LB AR ZEEFNFED
BIER M BHRME 7 231
29

RIEE B A REHIZE 383(1)(d) 15
BT T2 WA R O
BT

=L

Name

FRABETIRARINHF
([ZRFARETR])
EEREXARAR(EE])

41.

42.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Defails of the Group's assets pledged for the Group's bank loans and

performance bonds are included in notes 27 and 31 to

the financial

statements, respectively.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group

had the following transactions with related parties during the year:

(o)

Outstanding balances with related parties

Details of the Group's balances with its associate and related
companies as at the end of the reporting period are included
in note 17, and nofes 23 and 29, respectively, fo the financial
statements.

Particulars of amounts due from related companies, disclosed
pursuant fo section 383(1)(d) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, are as follows:

FRES
REESH
Maximum
amount
outstanding

Tysan Building Construction
Company Limited (“TBC")
Denco Properiies limited (Denco”)

BEABBREJMEARRAT  Hongkong Island Construction

([EEEEER])

RARETRRHBLEES  BARRD
AIMITES - EEREBESER i’]/t'j
BMEEBRARZEZENBR
meMEEERA TQ‘JF\%$’A_TT¢“H§H§
B HNA Finance | Co., lid. Z3FRE A 7]

ANNUAL REPORT 2017

Properties Co., Limited ("HIC”)

—E—tF during —TREF
2017 the year 2016
FET FET FHET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000
3,748 7,284 7,284
49,815 49,815 ~
57,891 57,891 —
111,454

7,284

TBC is confrolled by Mr. Fung, who is an executive director
of the Company. Denco and HIC are both non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of HNA Group Co., lid., which in tum is the holding
company of HNA Finance | Co., lid., the controlling shareholder
of the Company.
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42. BEALREG 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(b) FEEEEEENSZHH (b)  Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group
BEZZ—RF
MA—HZE
—TRF
BE-Z—tH +-A=1t—H
+ZA=+—H LEEARE
IHFE Period from
Year ended 1 April 2016 to
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
FAET FET
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FEEME B RA Short term employee benefits 72,738 217,954
EREEN Postemployment benefits 176 84
ENTFEEEAR Total compensation paid to key
2R 4EER management personnel 72,914 218,038
RS FBENTHRER Further details of directors’ remuneration are included in note 9 to
BizEQ © the financial statements.
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42. BEALXRB(E) 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

216

() BFEBMEELTZRME

£

(i

il

(il

Subcontracted works with related companies

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group subcontracted building services coordination

FEAEEKE works of approximately HK$300,000 (period
F IR 75 1 #8 T AE 49 ended 31 December 2016: Nil| to Tysan Project
300,0007% (& = Management Limited [“TPML", a company ultimately
—E-RET+ZA controlled by Mr. Fung).

=+—BIHH:

)R THALR

REBRRAR(RE

TRES —M
B RIS 22
7)o

RBE-E—+F

i

During the year ended 31 December 2017,

+ZA=+—HLtF TBC subcontracted rental and engineering
B FAEEIRS works relating fo tower cranes of approximately
HEXBREME S HK$569,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
JHENIRIE HK$4,031,000] to the Group.

#569,0007% Jo(#

E-T-"¥1+=A

=t+—HIEHE:

4,031,000% T ) 5
BYAREHE -

RBE-T—tF1+=

il

During the year ended 31 December 2017, TBC

A=+—BILFE- subcontracted foundation and site invesfigation works
FARETREME of approximately HK$ 1,225,000 (period ended 31
M BAETHEY December 2016: HK$24,409,000) fo the Group.
1,225,000 T(HE=

T"FTZRA=t—

A LEHART : 24,409,000
AN BETAEE -
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fc)

AERF(#E)
B EEETE L Al 2 B

£ (#)

Tt F
+ BiEF
B E T2
# 2 880,0005’%
TEEZE—RF
+ZRA=+—HItH
f:ZT)pBTAE

ET&HII

—tF
=+—BlL
B -EAEBBE
i E TR A
443,800,000/ T
BE-ZZ—-—RF
+ A=+—HILH

CE)NBTAR

=

v)

i

I

V) REBEEZZT-—RF
+tZA= + B 15
B AEEBHRET
T249260,000 %t 7
BFHREIR(ES)
BERAR([RAIRE
(B#&)] —HABB
EHEREEHZQ
) e
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(1) Subcontracted works with related companies [Contd)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, Denco
subcontracted foundation works of approximately
HK$342,880,000 (period ended 31 December
2016: Nil) to the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, HIC
subcontracted foundation works of approximately
HK$443,800,000 (period ended 31 December

2016: Nil) to the Group.

During the period ended 31 December 2016, the
Group subcontracted engineering and mechanical
works of approximately HK$260,000 to Tysan
Engineering (H.K.) Company Llimited ("TEHK", a
company ultimately controlled by Mr. Fung).
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42. BEALTRG(E)

[c) EEAXFEEEELRIZAMK

£ (&)

2) WEBEATZHAEMAX
REBER

(i

i

(i)
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REBEE-_T—+tF
+-A=+—BLILF
B AEERMRAR
ETRDFMERES
REEER 416,000
BLEZE_ZT—X
F+-A=+—H
IF 83 521,000
BT ) & 162,000%
TEHEZT—RE
+ZA=1+—H1H
fE : 204,000/87T) °

REBEZE-_T—+F
+ZA=+—H1
FE -AEEMHE
ATREE) DR
BmAshERE
F121,000% Jo(#
EZT-R"E+ZA
=t+—HIE8HE:
151,000 7t ) &
47 00078 T(H =
—T-R"F+=ZA
=t+—HIEHHE:
59,000 7T) °

REE-_T—+F
+-A=+—B8L1t#F
B AKERMNEER
SERAR(—FA
BEERRIES 2 A
a) 2R MEBEE &
EEBA 101,000/
TBEZTE—XEF
+=A=+—HI1H
fE : 126,000 7T )
& 38,0007% 7t (&
E_T-RF+R
=+—HLEHH:
49,000 7T) °

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

(2) Rental charges and management fees received from

related companies

i

i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group charged TBC for rental and management fee
of HK$416,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
HK$521,000) and HK$162,000 [period ended 31
December 2016: HK$204,000), respectively, to the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group charged TEHK for rental and management fee
of HK$121,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
HK$151,000) and HK$47,000 (period ended 31
December 2016: HK$59,000), respectively, to the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group charged Cando Trading Limited {a company
ultimately controlled by Mr. Fung) for rental and
management fee of HK$101,000 (period ended 31
December 2016: HK$126,000) and HK$38,000
(period ended 31 December 2016: HK$49,000),
respeciively, fo the Group.



42. BBEALTRZ(E)

fc)

B EEETE L Al 2 B

£ (#&)
B) RBEE-FT-—+&+=7

(4)

)

T+-HALEE AEE
ZEBEEBBRADRIRE
EEREEBEERD
2,383,000 T(EHE=T
—R"FE+-A=+—81t
HAfG - &) 2,982,000
TEE-ZT-AF+=A
=t+—HILEE:E) -

REz_Z—+H+_H
=+—BLtEE " BEE
RIREBEEABERR
A([EmEREIE] R
HBIMIER RS R BIMFE &
A 78 5 B 5 5l 4R 94,000
BLT(EE_Z—XRFt+=
A=+—HIHHE: )k
512000 (B E =&
—R"F+ZA=+—81
HEE) -

BEERIEREMEE
BRARZIZEWBA
A meEMEEERAA
Al B A A5 IR AR 3 HNA
Finance | Co., Ud. Z #ERE A
o

REBEZT—tF+=A
S+-—BRLEFE XK
BREETHAYMEL
T 12 492,529,000
BTEE_ZT - ~F
+-RA=+—BI1#H:
1,683,00087L) 28 T%H
ATR%E -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c)  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

)

(4)

()

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has a project development income of approximately
HK$2,383,000 (period ended 31 December 2016: Nil|
and HK$2,982,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
Nil) from Denco and HIC, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group was
charged HK$94,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
Nil] and HK$512,000 (period ended 31 December 2016:
Nil] by Hainan Marine Construction Project Management
Contracting Co., Limited ("Hainan Marine Construction”)
for provision of BIM modeling services and BIM platform,
respectively.

Hainan Marine Construction is a non-wholly-owned
subsidiary of HNA Group Co., ltd., which in tum is the
holding company of HNA Finance | Co., lid., the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
subcontracted cerfain renovation works of its office properiies
of approximately HK$2,529,000 (period ended 31
December 2016: HK$1,683,000) to TPML.
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42. BEALTRG(E)

fc)

;5277# EEEHE L 7] 2 AMX

(©)

()

(8)

C (%)

RBEE-_T—+F+-A
=t—-HEFE ~&E
REERIZ21207%E
A &% #728,000,0007%8
T BERBEERIZE
2 B W A 6,443,000 T
BE-ZT-RF+-A
=t—HLEHE:F) -

E2 I REMERERA
ZHZEWBAT - ﬁﬁ/
MEBERARAMAARA
Al HXHX?HNA Fmonce |
Co., Ud. 2%

REBEZT—+tF+=A
=+-HLEFE AKE
278 B B X 3t A 32 HKICIM
Fund Ill, LP.5T 32 & & 7T
REVNZEREBEREH
Wik FREELEARR
B BZABERTBR
RMTFE48(c) °

BEERREMERXEE
BRAAZZEMB R
B MEBEMREXEEAR
NRIAAARRBEERBR

HNA Finance | Co., ltd. Z
*'fﬂﬂ”—/\
REBEEZT—X~"F+=A

=T BLLHE *&H
M—RETBERABZEA
REBHERELEZY
% LB &1,002,000%
e ZMETRRANE
BHEMFEERPRHE
OB R E -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(c]  Other transactions with related companies of the Group:

(Contd)

()

()

(8)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
subscribed 12.07% capital in Fund Il amounting to
HK$728,000,000 and has a management fee income of
HK$6,443,000 (period ended 31 December 2016: Nil)

from Fund II.

Fund Il is a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of HNA Group
lid., which in tum is the holding company of HNA
Finance | Co., lid., the controlling shareholder of the

Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
entered into an amended and restated exempted limited
pariership agreement with Hisea in relation fo the
formation of HKICIM Fund Ill, L.P. The capital subscription
is made after year end. Further details are sef out in note

48(c) to

the financial statements.

Hisea is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HNA Holding
Group Co., lid., which in tumn is the holding company of
HNA Finance | Co., lid., the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

During the period ended 31 December 2016
sold a property held for sale to a close family member of

, the Group

one of the key management personnel at a consideration
of HK$1,002,000. This property was sold according to
prices and conditions similar fo those offered to other non-
related customers of the Group.
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42. BEAERZ(E) 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Contd)
(c) EBEXZEBEIELFGZEMK (c)  Ofther transactions with related companies of the Group:

7 (&) (Contd)

9) REBE-_Z—-—RF+_HA (9)  During the period ended 31 December 2016, Mr.
=+—HIEHME BLE Fung, who was a then beneficial shareholder of certain
(ARRETHBRAR SR subsidiaries of the Company, provided personal
ZEmRE)ZENER guarantees to financial institutions in connection with
AERZ-REEERR general credit facilities and performance bonds granted fo
BHRBERIBHBIR these subsidiaries.

SEA LR o
RERGIRMAEERERER These transactions were entered into by the Group and its related
AR R B R IRFRET AL companies in accordance with the terms of the agreements.
X E() e)3) -~ (c)id) ~ [c)l6) K c) The related party transactions in respect of items (c|(1), (c)(3], (c)(4),
Z)ENEBEALTRS  BEmRH (c)(6) and [c][7) above, the disposals as defailed in note 12 and the
12Ftit 2 & DA KB RE 43 P it 2 acquisifion as defailed in note 43 to the financial statements which also
WEEEBMMER T EHRRIE 14AZRT constitute connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
RENFHEIHIHBEMER S - 0 I as defined in Chapter 14A of the Llisting Rules. Personal guarantees
S ()(Q) B FTIR B S S EdR A 2 A A provided by Mr. Fung as disclosed in item (c|(9) above constitute
EREBAK ETARRAIE 1AABPRENH connected fransactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
BR G - EERRET EMARRIE 14A and are exempted from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
BZHERTE - the Listing Rules.
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R-ZF-RFOATNE  ARAE - #
ENBREF L -BERWE - Bt
ARARIREBERFEREHEAR LT
ERF2EMBLRIRANE(ER)
A0% B HE([HER S ]) - HEHEARAT
ZHITESREL2EHE YRER
WE(EE) 40% B EITIR 2 FFHER X
o

WER S0 MIERBETT - wEIHE
—BEER-E-AFLAMAREK - K
REIXEE4732,192,0007% 7T A
WERFME(RE)35%E(E —
BRXH]) ZREF-ERRXITK
% AAFNFAWE(EEL) 2 IER
60%IEEIS% - BHE_T—RF+_H
=t+—HLEHE ZRXHEARSER
RS Mm732,192,000% T R EH
BB RS 2 REE 37,273,000
BT 2 77 £8694,919,0007%
TUR R A2 R M IR o

RZZ—R"F+ZA=+—H  #HEX
52 % ZBRERFIE B SR AR AR SR AA Bt
BRAFMBERND 2EREL - BHRE
104,598,000 8 T E EHR A EME
308 - MAREEE DR AR 2R
AR AL -
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ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN A
SUBSIDIARY

On 19 April 2016, the Company, Fortunate Pool and Mr. Fung entered
info a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed fo purchase and Fortunate Pool agreed fo sell 40% equity
interests in TFHKL, a then non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
(the “Foundation Transaction”). Fortunate Pool, which is wholly-owned
by Mr. Fung, an Executive Director of the Company, is the non-
controlling shareholder of the 40% issued shares of TFHKL.

The Foundation Transaction took place in two phases. Phase 1 of
the Foundation Transaction was completed on 4 July 2016 when
the Company paid cash of HK$732,192,000 to acquire 35%
equity interest in TFHKL ("Phase 1 Transaction”). Immediately after the
complefion of Phase 1 Transaction, the Company's equity interest in
TFHKL increased from 60% to 95%. Such fransaction was accounted for
as an equity fransaction and the debit difference of HK$694,919,000
between the consideration of HK$732,192,000 and the carrying
amount of the non-controlling interest of HK$37,273,000 was
recorded in the refained profits in the equity during the period ended
31 December 2016.

As at 31 December 2016, Phase 2 of the Foundation Transaction
was accounted for as a forward contract to acquire the shares held by
the non-controlling inferests in a subsidiary. The consideration payable
of HK$104,598,000 was recognised as other payables and the
corresponding debit was made tfo the forward equity contract in the

equity.
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ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN A
SUBSIDIARY (Cont'd)

Phase 2 of the Foundation Transaction, in which the Company paid
cash of HK$104,598,000 to acquire the remaining 5% equity interest
in TFHKL ("Phase 2 Transaction”), was completed on 27 April 2017
Immediately following the completion of Phase 2 Transaction, TFHKL
became a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. Such transaction
was accounted for as an equity transaction and the difference of
HK$97,820,000 between the consideration of HK$ 104,598,000 and
of the non-controlling interest of HK$6,778,000
was debited in the refained profits in the equity during the year.

the carrying amount

Further details of the Foundation Transaction are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 19 April 2016, 30 June 2016, 4
July 2016 and 27 April 2017, and a circular dated 23 May 2016.

DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of Trevino Worldwide Limited (“Trevino”)

On 1 April 2016
“Trevino Purchaser”] entered into a sale and purchase agreement
100%

equity interest in Trevino and the interestfree shareholder's loan of

, the Group and an independent third party (the
pursuant to which, the Trevino Purchaser acquired the
HK$307,000 owing by Trevino to the Group at a fofal consideration
of HK$396,000 (the “Trevino Disposal). The Trevino Disposal was

completed on 5 April 2016. Trevino was an investment holding
company which held a golf club membership.
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44, HE—BEMEBAR(E) 44. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (Cont'd)
& Trevino Worldwide Limited Disposal of Trevino Worldwide Limited (“Trevino”) (Contd)
([Trevino ) (#&)
ZEAF
2016
AT
HK$ 000
HEZEEFE - Net assefs disposed of:
HinEE Other assets 270
REFEBZER loan from the Group (307)
(37)
BEEZREFREEZER Loan from the Group assigned 307
HE B ARz Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 126
396
AT A - Satisfied by:

RafE Cash consideration 396
HE-Z—"E+-A=+—HILHH An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of
ATrevino HEZ RS R ERIESE S F the Trevino Disposal during the period ended 31 December 2016 was
MAZ DT as follows:

ZEAF
2016
TIET
HK$ 000
BeRERTevino HEZRER Cash consideration and inflow of cash and
EZRAREBEERA cash equivalents in respect of the Trevino Disposal 396

ANNUAL REPORT 2017
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
2017
BATE
FFABEZ
Financial AEHE
asset TRIEE
EFK atfairvalue  Available-
FEWRRIE through for-sale
Loans and profit or financial st
receivables loss asset Total
FET FET FET FET
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial asset at fair value
through profit and loss - 738,865 - 738,865
Trade and refention
receivables 638,810 — — 638,810
Other receivables 17,023 — — 17,023
Pledged bank balances 41,414 - — 41,414
Cash and cash equivalents 2,327,460 — — 2,327,460
3,024,707 738,865 — 3,763,572
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45. BRERIES 2 eMIA(E) 45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Cont'd)
RBESMR SEERTIAZREEN The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
T: (&) as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Contd)
THEE ) Financial assets [Contd)
A 2016
BRTE
AFABHZ
TREE—
HIEER
Financial

asset A E
at fair value SREE

ERk through Available-

PR IR profit or forsale
loans and loss - held financial a5t
receivables  for trading assef Total

TET TIET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000

AEHERE Availableforsale investment - — 1,112 1,112
TEEBIA Derivative financial instrument — 39,721 - 39,721

FEWE ZERF K Trade and refention
EBURE S receivables 797,878 — — 797,878
H e o8 Other receivables 19,682 — — 19,682
BelkFRHESLEE  Cash and cash equivalents 1,858,448 — — 1,858,448
2,676,008 39,721 1,112 2,716,841

226 ANNUAL REPORT 2017



45. BERIE D2 ERMTA(E)

RREHR - FEEMTAZREEN

T (&)

o=V~

B R IRHR S IRE S
HitENRIR

P RRITEE

REREE

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W B it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Contd)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments

as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: [Cont'd)

46. TRT RN TFEERRE

AEBE-—RABAM-GEFTRZER
BRBATL AN EREH - ZXNE
T R RERBRERERES
BAZBERDTGE - ZFBEABAS
EMSABRRARE  BRERHEY
ERER  REERAM R - XX
B REERE A TERBR -

Financial liabilities
—E—LF —TRF
2017 2016
RS AR R R
1l 58K 2
TRBE CRBE
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Trade and retention payables 319,752 492,682
Other payables 4,402 111,977
Interestbearing bank borrowings 5,880,017 475210
Guaranteed notes 295,343 -
6,499,514 1,079,863

46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group entered info a cross currency swap with a financial insfitution

with AA- credit rating. The cross currency swap was measured at

present value using valuation techniques similar fo forward pricing and

swap models. The model incorporates various market observable inputs

including the expected forward rate or price, volatility and interest rafe

curves. The carrying amount of the cross currency swap was the same

as its fair value.
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46. ERTAEZ N TFEERRE(E)

THERABAEEERIAZAYE
ATEERAE

RZEBE—+FR_ZT—R"F+=A
=+ —RBRAFEECEE -

46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Contd)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the

Group's financial insfruments:

Assets measured af fair value as at 31 December 2017 and 2016:

“E-tF I
2017 2016
AVETERA AVETERR
Fair value measurement using Fair volue meosurement using
AR EX ED R BX BX
EHE TEE  TUER AHE TEE  fUER
(£1E) BAEE  BAHE (%1E)  BABE  &AE
Qued  ($2EB)  (%3E) Quoed  (£2B)  (£38)
pice  Significant  Significant pice  Signficant  Significant
inactive  observable unobservable inacive  obsenoble  unobservable
markels inputs inputs markefs inputs inputs
[evel 1] (level2)  [level 3) Tofal (level 1] (level 2) (level 3) Tolal
FEr FEr A FEr AT FAL FAL AT
HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOOO  HKSO00  HKS000 HKSO00
fiEeBIA Deivative finoncial
insfrument - - - - - 39721 - 39721
BOTETABR  Finoncial osset af foir value
LEREE through proftor loss - - 738865 738865 - - - -
- - 738865 738865 - 30,721 - 39721

R-F—tF+-A=+—0 £4%8
b FRATENE 2 SBAMN(=
TRFE)o

FRFIBEE2E AT AEMRD
HETESR NTESHEENGRE
BEEAXBHEIEBEE_T—RF
TZRA=1+—HIHE: &) -
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The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value

as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

During the year, there were no fransfers of fair value measurements

between Llevel 1 and Llevel 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

for both financial assets and financial liabilities (period ended 31
December 2016: Nil).



46. ERMT AR N TFEERRE(E)

BABEIEATFESRERLAFHE
SHE2 2% -

RZE—RFEOA—A -
—E-RFT+ZA=t+—"HRK
—Z—+F-A—-HAZFEAE
ANE

HEREES

NFERE

RZE—+F+-A=+—H
ZREE

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W B it % B 3 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 December 2017 —F—+4+=fA=+—H

46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(Contd)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within level 3 of

the fair value hierarchy:

Carrying amount at 1 April 2016,
31 December 2016 and
1 January 2017

Additions

Disposal of investment fund

Fair value gain

Carrying amount at
31 December 2017

FLTREES
Unlisted
investment

fund

FET
HK$000

1,328,600
(600,600)
10,865

738,865

F3R 2017
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46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Contd)

The fair value of Fund Il as af 31 December 2017 was estimated
with reference to a valuation performed by Vigers by using the income
approach adjusted by net asset method. The fair value measurement
is posifively correlated to the gross development value and negatively
correlated to other significant unobservable inputs set out below.

Each year, the Company’s management decides to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of Fund II.
Selection criferia include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The management
has discussions with the valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results when the valuation is performed for annual financial
reporting.

Below is a summary of the valuation technique used and the key inputs
o the valuation of Fund II.

BARIBERARE
ER % Significant AT
Valuation technique unobservable inputs Weight average
FEPREES WARTIFEEEARE  BREE
Unlisted investment fund  Income approach Gross development value
adjusted by nef —F= BF R 28,5008 7T
asset method - Residential HK$28,500 per square feet
—-Z8 FF77R40,0008 7T
- Retall HK$40,000 per square feet
— B85 §81£7 3,300,000 %L
- Car park HK$3,300,000 per unit
E KA 3%
Marketing costs 3%
BEXE 6%
Professional fee 6%
BB 5%
Financing cost 5%
HAER 3%
Contingency fee 3%

ANNUAL REPORT 2017



47.

MR EE B EREE

AEEZIReRTIABRERE NER
RelEA  2HRRTET  BRES
B RAURE S R E AR - &
NESENX - EARES RE R
B RITEENRBRRRER - 252
BTAZFERHERREBMEAR
B BZETeR T AAR 2 ERRINE
BIEZERR BREFIMT - KEE
TEREBEENERZTAR - UERE
B M B RO SR EGE & 1 o

=Bk

AEEZEIESREERSRELFRR
2RAE CEARTETFAREKRES
B~ EUIREI S K E A IR -

AREREER S 2 RITHAGERE
EARER T ZREENR B8
RERBREER REERRITEFLZE
ERRAAK -

AEBEZEERRIEREHEUES
B EUURE S KA RAIE - K
CEHEEEREERERENESE
B mMAKEESCERRRYTNE
Ko AREYEEERBRBEST 2B
o EECERDBESEARSETF
REF - BRAKEEEREEEE S
B EUURE S R A MERFIAZE
BERR < ELEBED HIRUBERER
PHAE 23 Jo 24 KR

47.

HFHRHBEERREFALEMARAT

W% 3 %% W 5 NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 December 2017 —ZE—+4+=-A=+—H

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include cash and cash
equivalents, pledged bank balances, frade and retention and other
receivables, trade and retention and other payables, bank borrowings
and guaranteed notes. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes to these financial statements. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management of the Group
manages and monifors these exposures to ensure that appropriate

measures are implemented in a fimely and effective manner.

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial assefs are cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank balances, and trade and retention and other receivables.

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and pledged bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by interational creditrating agencies.

The Group's credit risk is primarily affributable to ifs frade and refention
and other receivables. The management of the Group monitors each
individual frade debt on an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to
bad debts is not significant. The Group has no significant concentration
of credit risk, with the exposure spreading over a large number of
counterparties and customers. Further quantitative data in respect of the
Group's exposure to credif risk arising from frade and refention and
other receivables are disclosed in notes 23 and 24 fo the financial
sfatements, respectively.
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure fo changes in interest rates is mainly attributable
fo ifs interestbearing bank borrowings. Borrowings af variable rates
expose the Group fo interest rafe risk. The Group currently does not
have an inferest rate hedging policy. However, the management of
the Group monitors the Group's interest rate exposure and considers
enfering info interest rate swaps fo reduce its exposure fo interest rate
fluctuations should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity fo a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables held consfant,
of the Group's profit before tax (through the impact on floating rafe
borrowings| and the Group's equity [before any impact on tax).

BRBEAT
FELHA AR
Increase Decrease REED *
in interest in profit Decrease
rate before tax in equity *
TET TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

100 {EIE %
100 basis
points (746) —

100 EEE
100 basis
points (4,759) —

*

Excluding refained profits

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and Mainland China with
most of its transactions settled in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
Cerfain of the Group's monefary assefs are denominated in US$. The
Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi and US$ against HKS$. The Group considered the impact on
the equity from the change in US$ exchange rate was nominal at the
end of the reporting period since HK$ is pegged to US$. In the current
year, all of the Group's bank borrowings are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Foreign exchange risk (Contd

Management monifors the Group's currency exposure on an ongoing
basis and considers entering into forward currency contracts when the
need arises.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period fo a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group's
profit before fax [due to changes in the fair value of monetary assets
and liabilities).

EXLH BREADEFIEM
Increase Increase
in exchange in profit
rate before tax
% TIET
% HK$ 000
S 2017
BT ARBEE IF Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Renminbi 5 10
—T-RF 2016
BT ARERE I Hong Kong dollar weakens
against Renminbi 5 16,031
REEZ/EE Liquidity risk

AEB BEREBNBRTHELR
BEDEETEIM ARSTE - K
SETHRNETIRESHN - BIRA
R EIRREN A A -

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of bank borrowings. The
Group regularly reviews its major funding positions to ensure that it has
adequate financial resources in meeting ifs financial obligations.
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47. U RREEEERBER(E) 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

mEBETEE(E) Liquidity risk (Contd)
BARD AT AARBEIRRT - LTI EHIARE The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as af the end of
ERHEHRAzeRaEIHA the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows:
“EtE
2017
12f8A%UA 1255 SENE
REXEE Less than o5 Over ast
On demand 12 months years 5 years Total

FEn FEn FiEr FEn FiEr
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ERESEFREMNRES  Trade and refention payables - 319,752 - - 319,752
Eft MR Other payables - 4,402 - - 4,402
MBRTEE Inferestbearing bank barrowings - 58094375 16,779 53,863 5,880,017
BEREE Guaranteed notes - - 305,000 - 305,000
RENREERMEAR Guarantees in respect
fEHZBR of performance
bonds in relation fo
subsidiaries 255,782 - - - 255782

255782 6,133,529 321,779 53863 6,764,953
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MBEREEEERBE(E) 47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

mEBETEE(E) Liquidity risk (Contd)

BIBEATAARBEIRIRS - AT EIIARE The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end of
EREESRA s eRAEITMA : (&) the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments,
is as follows: (Contd
“ENE
2016
12/8RIAR 125% SENME
RERER Less than T105 Over @t
On demond 12 months years 5 years Total

TET &L &L TET &L
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000

ERESEFNRENRES  Trade and refenfion payables - 492,682 - - 492,682
Hft MR Other payables - 111,971 - - 111,971
MERTRE* Interestbearing bank

borrowings* 3,220 124,976 289 856 57,835 475,887
RENREERMBEAT Guarantess in respect of

{2 iR performance
bonds in relation
o subsidiaries 343,537 - - - 343,537

346,757 729,629 289,856 57,835 1,424,077

* O RIE-RE+ZRA=T—B HE * Asat 31 December 2016, included in inferestbearing bank borrowings
RITEEaEHARESETE were bank loans of HK$3,220,000 which contained a repayment on
ERABEHEENEREREEER demand clause giving the lender the uncondifional right to call the loan
%’\Z 17T E 5 3,220,000% T - B at any fime and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile,

C B EAE Jﬁqﬁﬂﬁ)ﬂﬁ’ﬁ 5 ‘Zi—?ﬁ%’ these amounts were classified as on demand.

RS
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Contd)

Notwithstanding the above repayment on demand clause, the directors
did not believe that the bank loans would be called in their entirety
within 12 months, and they considered that the bank loans would
be repaid in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the
respective agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the
financial position of the Group af the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group's compliance with the loan covenants; the lack of
events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all previously
scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the terms of bank
loans, the maturity terms at 31 December 2016 were amounts of
HK$ 128,196,000 payable in less than 12 months; HK$289,856,000
payable in one fo five years, inclusive; and HK$57,835,000 payable
over five years.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability fo continue as a going concern and
fo maintain healthy capital rafios in order to support ifs business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments fo
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
fo shareholders, retun capital o shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year ended 31 December 2017 and the
period ended 31 December 2016.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Cont'd)

Capital management [Contd

The Group monifors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt
divided by the total equity of the Group. The Group's policy is to
maintain the gearing ratio not exceeding 50%. Net debt includes
frade and refention payables, other payables, interesi-bearing bank
borrowings and guaranteed nofes less pledged bank balances and
cash and cash equivalents. Capital includes tofal equity of the Group.
The gearing ratios as atf the end of the reporting periods were as
follows:

—E—+F ZE—RF

2017 2016

FET FET

HK$000 HK$000

ENE SRR IEMNRER Trade and retention payables 319,752 492,682
Hit BN RIR Other payables 4,402 111,971
M BRITEE Interestbearing bank borrowings 5,880,017 475,210
BRRER Guaranteed notes 295,343 —
B BEERRITEF less: Pledged bank balances (41,414 -
RehERFLEE Cash and cash equivalents (2,327,460) (1,858,448)
&%,/ (Re)F8 Net debt/(cash) 4,130,640 [ 778,585)
s Total equity 12,218,001 2,959,730
EENENEIR RS Gearing ratio 34% N/A
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(a]  Proposed issue of convertible bonds

On 19 January 2018, the Company and Shinhan Creative
Finance 3rd Co. (“Shinhan Creative”) entered into a term sheet,
pursuant to which, the Company has agreed fo issue and
Shinhan Creative agreed to subscribe for the convertible bonds in
an aggregate principal amount of not less than US$50,000,000
[equivalent to approximately HK$390,000,000) and not
more than US$85,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$663,000,000), subject to the terms and conditions to be set

forth in the definitive subscription agreements.

The convertible bonds bear inferest rate at 6% per annum
payable semi-annually and with a maturity date of 36 months
following the bonds issue date. Subject to and upon compliance
with the terms and conditions of the convertible bonds, the right
of the conversion of any convertible bonds into the Company's
shares may be exercised af any time during the period starting
from the date falling one month after the bond issue date until
the bond maturity date at an conversion price of HK$4.08 per
share. The net proceeds from the issue of convertible bonds will
be used for general corporate purposes including but not limited
fo working capital. Up to the date of these financial statements,
no convertible bonds have been issued.

Further defails of the proposed issue of convertible bonds were set
out in the Company’s announcement dated 19 January 2018.
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(6]  Termination of proposed acquisition of shares in

Sapphire Corporation Limited

On 18 October 2017, the Company, Forestar Assets Limited
[a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company), Best Feast Limited
("Best Feast”), Mr. Cheung Wai Suen and Ms. Wang Heng (the
“Best Feast Warrantors”] and Ou Rui Limited (“Ou Rui”| entered
info separate sale and purchase agreements, pursuant fo which,
Forestar Assets Limited agreed fo acquire and Best Feast, Best
Feast Warrantors and Ou Rui agreed to sell, approximately
10.63% and 17.33%, respectively, of the issued share capital of
Sapphire Corporation Limited at consideration of approximately
HK$101,474,000 and HK$165,432,000 respectively. The
consideration shall be seffled by the Company by the issue and
allotment of a maximum of 24,871,074 and 40,547,103
shares of the Company at an issue price of HK$4.08 per share
fo Best Feast and Ou Rui, respectively, in accordance with the
ferms and conditions of the sale and purchase agreements.

As it was expected that certain conditions in the sale and
purchase agreements could not be fulfilled within a reasonable
fime, on 29 January 2018, the Company, Forestar Assets
limited, Best Feast and Ou Rui entered info separate termination
agreements, pursuant fo which the parties agreed to terminate the
acquisifion with immediate effect.

Further details of the proposed acquisition and termination
of the proposed acquisition are set out in the Company's
announcements dated 18 October 2017 and 29 January 2018.
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(c)  Formation of HKICIM Fund lll, L.P. (“Fund Ill”)

On 11 January 2018, an amended and restated exempted
limited partnership agreement entered between the Group and
Hisea and the subscription agreement in relation to capital
contribution in Fund Ill by the Group were passed by the ordinary
resolutions of the Company at the special general meeting.
Thereafter, the Group made an aggregate capital injection of

HK$633,160,000 in Fund Ill, representing 16.57% of the equity

inferest of Fund IlI.

Further details of the formation of Fund Il are set out in the
Company's announcements dated 30 November 2017 and 11
January 2018, and a circular dated 21 December 2017.

(d)  Disposal of subsidiaries of Fund Il and Fund /I

On 12 February 2018, Fund Il and Fund Il [collectively, the
"Funds”] entered into separate sale and purchase agreements
in relation to the disposal of their entire equity inferests in Tofal
Thrive Holdings Limited and Sky Hero Developments Limited
[which, through intermediafe holding companies, holding two
property development projects af Kai Tak, Kowloon, Hong Kong)
with Shibo Investment Limited and Easco Investment Limited,
wholly-owned subsidiaries of Henderson land Development

Company Limited af an initial consideration of approximately
HK$15,959,410,000 in aggregate. This disposal was

completed on 14 February 2018.
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Cont'd)

(d]  Disposal of subsidiaries of Fund Il and Fund Il (Contd)

(e)

The Company, through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, has
contributed capital of 12.07% and 16.57% in Fund Il and Fund
lll, respectively. Pursuant fo the respective partnership agreements
of the Funds, the Funds will distribute the full net cash proceeds
from the disposals promptly to the limited partners and general
partner. Up to the dafe of these financial statements, the Funds
have returned the inifial capital fo the Group.

Further details of this disposal were set out in the Company's
announcement dated 12 February 2018.

Proposed disposal of subsidiaries

On 8 March 2018 and 21 March 2018, Omnilink Assets
Limited ("Omnilink"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and the Company (as Omnilink’s guarantor entered into a
binding offer and a sale and purchase agreement with Fabulous
New Limited (“Fabulous”] and Wheelock Properties Limited (as
Fabulous's guarantor), respectively, pursuant fo which, Fabulous
agreed to acquire from Omnilink the entire issued capital of
Onwards Asia Limited and all amounts which Onwards Asia
limited owes to Omnilink as af the date of completion af a fofal
cash consideration of HK$6,359,155,000. The principal assets
of Onwards Asia Limited comprise all the issued capifal of Top
Genius Holdings limited, the owner of the development under
construction on New Kowloon Inland Lot No. 6564 on Kai Tak
Area 1L Site 1, Kai Tak, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The completion
of this disposal is expected fo take place on or before 16 May
2018. This disposal constitutes a very subsfantial disposal of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

COMPANY

the end of the reporting period is as follows:

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Interests in subsidiaries

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Trade payables and accruals

Other payables and deposits received

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS
Net assefs

EQUITY
Issued capital
Reserves [nofe)

Total equity

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at

—E—tF “E-RF
2017 2016
FET FET
HK$000 HK$'000
5,587 3,807
9,500,873 1,120,185
9,506,460 1,123,992
106,105 67
4,516 3,309
2,085,712 1,149 993
2,196,333 1,158,369
284,493 -
7,412 4,042

334 104,975
292,239 109,017
1,904,094 1,044,352
11,410,554 2,168,344
340,249 113,416
11,070,305 2,054,928
11,410,554 2,168,344
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49. RABMBMRRK(E) 49. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Cont'd)
BT - Note:
ARAZ BT A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:
EHRA
BRADEE R BHEEX
Share  BIARER Forward  REEF
premium  Confributed equity Retained Bt
account surplus contract profits Total

TET TET TET TET THET
HK$000 — HK$000  HK$000  HK$00O  HK$000

RZZ—R"FMNA—A At 1 April 2016 — 593,811 - 526,890 1,120,701
N ER Profit for the period — — — 6,675 6,675
HneEkaER Tofal comprehensive income
for the period — — — 6,675 6,675
BTRAR (M52 34) Issue of shares (note 34) 1,032,810 — — — 1,032,810
BAnEEATR S (FI3E 34) Share issue expenses (nofe 34) (660) — — — (660)
REWEE—FEMB AR  Forward acquisition of
REIMER (Fi1:E43) additional inferests
in a subsidiary (note 43) — —  (104,598) —  (104,598)
RZT—ARF
+-A=+— At 31 December 2016
k=F— ‘ti A= and 1 January 2017 1,032,150 593,811  (104,598) 533,565 2,054,928
FRREF Profit for the year — - - 408 408
FREEKRRER Tofal comprehensive income
for the year - - - 408 408
BTRAR (M52 34) Issue of shares (note 34) 9,027,961 - — — 9,027,961
RN EITRZ (MFE34)  Share issue expenses [nofe 34) (4,174 - - - (4,174)
REWE—FEMB AR  Forward acquisition of
REIMER (Fi1:E43) additional inferests
in a subsidiary (note 43) — — 104,598 - 104,598
ZE2-REEEREEM 2016 final dividend declared
Z AR S (FEE13) and paid (nofe 13 — - —  (113,41¢) (113,41¢)
5
+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2017 10,055,937 593,811 — 420,557 11,070,305
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49.

50.

51.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY (Contd)

The contributed surplus of the Company included the excess of the fair
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation in 1991 prior to the listing of the Company's shares, over
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued in exchange therefor
amounting to HK$29,950,000. In addition, pursuant to a special
resolution passed at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 7 August 2015, the entire amount of HK$563,861,000 standing
fo the credit of share premium account of the Company as af 7 August
2015 was cancelled, and the corresponding balance arising therefrom
was credited fo the contributed surplus account of the Company.
Under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company may make
distributions fo its members out of the contributed surplus under certain
circumsfances.

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION

As defailed in note 5 fo the financial statements, cerfain comparative
amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year's
presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the

board of directors on 23 March 2018.





